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MORGAN STANLEY ASIA INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors present the annual report and auditeshcial statements (which comprise the income
statement, statement of comprehensive income ns¢atieof changes in equity, statement of financial
position, statement of cash flows and related ndtés 33) for Morgan Stanley Asia International
Limited (the “Company” or “MSAIL") for the year erdl 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is a private limited company incorpatah Hong Kong, with a head office in Hong Kong
and a branch in Singapore (“Branch”). The Companw irestricted licence bank under the Banking
Ordinance in Hong Kong and the Branch is licensed aholesale bank in Singapore. The Company is
regulated by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (“HKV) and the Branch is regulated by the Monetary
Authority of Singapore (“MAS”). It is also a retgsed institution under the Hong Kong Securitied an
Futures Ordinance.

The principal activities of the Company are to egggén the business of banking including deposit
taking and lending. It also acts (a) as agentaralf of its customers in connection with the psawn

of general investment, securities and futures dgaks well as discretionary management and (b) as
introducing broker to Morgan Stanley & Co. Inteinagl plc for the provision of clearance, settleinen
and custody services in relation to the aforemeetiictransactions.

The Company's ultimate parent undertaking and oding entity is Morgan Stanley which, together twit
the Company and Morgan Stanley’s other subsidiadertakings, form the Morgan Stanley Group (the
“Morgan Stanley Group”).

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Company for the year ended 3deBer 2018 are set out in the income statement on
page 6.

No interim dividends were paid to the sole shamgroturing the year. The Directors do not recominen
the payment of a final dividend and propose thafifofits be retained.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company's shares issued are seinaubte 21 to the financial statements. There was n
movement in the Company’s share capital duringyéae.

DIRECTORS

The following Directors held office throughout tlyear and up to the date of approval of this report
(except where otherwise shown):

Chui, Yik Chiu Vincent

Clatworthy, David Peter

Fung, Choi Cheung
Gazzi,Robert(appointed o013 Septembe¢ 201€)
Kwan, Yin Ping

Laroia, Gokul

Ong, Whatt Soon Ronald

Rajaram, Harish

Weraight, David John



MORGAN STANLEY ASIA INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS' MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRA NGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION TO THEC OMPANY’S BUSINESS

No transactions, arrangements and contracts ofifisigmce to which the Company, its holding
companies or any subsidiaries of its holding corngsmmere a party and in which a Director of the
Company had a material interest, whether direcatlindirectly, subsisted at the end of the yeartor a
any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES AND DEBENTURES

Morgan Stanley, the Company’s ultimate holding camp has several senior executive incentive

compensation programs under which senior executigesive, as part of their total compensation,

incentive awards of restricted stock units. All &itors of the Company except independent non-
executive directors, are eligible to participatesirch incentive compensation programs and receive
awards of restricted stock units thereunder.

Details of the deferred stock awards of the ultamladlding company, in which the Directors of the
Company are entitled to participate, are set onpie 30 to the financial statements.

Other than as disclosed above, at no time duriagyéfar was the Company, its holding companies or
any subsidiaries of its holding companies a pastarly arrangements to enable the Directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of acquisitioshares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate.
SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On 5 March 2019, the sale of all of the Companytirary shares from Morgan Stanley Hong Kong
Limited (“MSHKL") to Morgan Stanley Hong Kong 1238mited (“MSHK1238") was completed at a
consideration of US$314,896,673.

On 22 March 2019, 500,000,000 ordinary shares vigseed by the Company to MSHK1238 for a
cash consideration of US$500,000,000.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association of the Company provitiat a Director or former Director of the Company
may be indemnified out of the Company’'s assetsrajany liability incurred by the Director to a

person other than the Company or an associated aiomgf the Company in connection with any
negligence, default, breach of duty or breachusttin relation to the Company or associated compan
(as the case may be).

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual gehenaeting to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
CHUI, VINCENT YIK CHIU
DIRECTOR

23 April 2019



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SOLE MEMBER OF MORGAN STANLEY ASIA INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Morgan Stanley Asia International Limited (the "Company") set
out on pages 6 to 68, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018, and the
income statement, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as
at 31 December 2018, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the
HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the "Code"), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SOLE MEMBER OF MORGAN STANLEY ASIA INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion solely to you in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee

that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Directors.



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SOLE MEMBER OF MORGAN STANLEY ASIA INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements - continued

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

23 April 2019



MORGAN STANLEY ASIA INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

INCOME STATEMENT
Year ended 31 December 2018

2018 2017

Note US$'000 US$'000

Interest income 75,752 26,488

Interest expense (23,517, (33,570)

Net interest income/(expense) 9 52,23k (7,082)

Fee and commission income 7 245,38¢ 214,535

Net trading income/(expense) 10,152 (108,093)

Net income from other financial assets held atv¥alue 5 - 136,283
Net gains on derecognition of financial assets measuredia

value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) 6 373 -
Other revenue 8 6,503 3,429
Total non-interest revenues 262,41¢ 246,154
Net revenues 314,651 239,072
Non-interest expenses:

Other expenses 10 (227,035 (209,711)
PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 87,61¢ 29,361
Income tax 11 (13,343 (4,315)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 74,273 25,046

All operations were continuing in the current yaad prior year.

The notes on pages 11 to 68 form an integral gaheofinancial statements.



MORGAN STANLEY ASIA INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Year ended 31 December 2018

Note

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to prifor loss:
FVOCI reserve: 11
Net change in fair value
Net amount reclassified to income statement
Available-for-sale reserve: 11
Net change in fair value of available-for-sfitancial assets
Net amount reclassified to income statement

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AFTER
INCOME TAX

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNER OF THE COMPANY

2018 2017
US$'000 US$'000
74,277 25,046
1,976 -
(312) -

- (572)

- 297

1,664 (275)
75,937 24,771

The notes on pages 11 to 68 form an integral gaheofinancial statements.



MORGAN STANLEY ASIA INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Year ended 31 December 2018

Available-
Share FVOCI for-sale Retained Total
capital reserve reserve earnings equity
Note US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
Balance at 1 January 2017 170,00 - (421) 38,61¢ 208,197
Profit for the year - - - 25,04¢€ 25,046
Other comprehensive income fc
the year: 11
Available-for-sale reserve:
Net change in fair value - - (572) - (572)
Net amount reclassified to
income statement - - 297 - 297
Total comprehensive incomédor
the year - - (275) 25,04¢€ 24,771
Balance at 31 December 2017
and 1 January 2018 170,00C - (696) 63,664 232,968
Impact of adoption of new
accounting standards 4 - (696) 696 - -
Profit for the year - - - 74,2732 74,273
Other comprehensive income fc
the year: 11
FVOCI reserve::
Net change in fair value - 1,976 - - 1,976
Net amount reclassified to
income statement - (312) - - (312)
Total comprehensive incomédor
the year - 1,664 - 74,2732 75,937
Balance at 31 December 2018 170,00(C 968 - 137,931 308,905

The notes on pages 11 to 68 form an integral gaheofinancial statements.



MORGAN STANLEY ASIA INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December 2018

2018 2017

Note US$'000 US$'000
ASSETS
Cash and short-term deposits 22(a) 538,48¢ 188,267
Trading financial assets 13 969 2,813
Loans and advances to customers 14 1,598,30! 1,430,416
Investment securities 15 1,315,30( 2,410,435
Trade and other receivables 16 6,172 18,781
Deferred tax assets 19 4,023 6,452
Prepayments 124 215
TOTAL ASSETS 3,463,37¢ 4,057,379
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Deposits 18 3,029,991 3,686,326
Trading financial liabilities 13 3,164 15,771
Trade and other payables 17 112,91¢ 120,039
Current tax liabilities 7,662 1,667
Accruals 733 608
TOTAL LIABILITIES 3,154,46¢ 3,824,411
EQUITY
Share capital 21 170,00C 170,000
FVOCI reserve 21 968 -
Available-for-sale reserve 21 - (696)
Retained earnings 137,937 63,664
Equity attributable to owner of the Company 308,90¢ 232,968
TOTAL EQUITY 308,90t 232,968
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 3,463,37¢ 4,057,379

These financial statements were approved by thedBmad authorised for issue on 23 April 2019:

Signed on behalf of the Board

Chui, Vincent Yik Chiu Wraight, David John
Director Director

The notes on pages 11 to 68 form an integral gaheofinancial statements.



MORGAN STANLEY ASIA INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Year ended 31 December 2018

NET CASH FLOWS USED IN OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of investment securities

Proceeds from maturity/sale of investment securitie

Interest received from investment securities

NET CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE
END OF THE YEAR

2018 2017

Note US$'000 US$'000
22(b) (767,080 (904,191)
(7,566,430 (9,753,551)

8,678,86¢ 10,576,343

4,859 2,250

1,117,29¢ 825,042

350,21¢ (79,149)

188,267 267,416

22(a) 538,48E 188,267

The notes on pages 11 to 68 form an integral gaftecfinancial statements.

10



MORGAN STANLEY ASIA INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2018

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company is a private limited company with achetfice in Hong Kong and a branch in Singapore
(“Branch”). The Company was incorporated and is ided in Hong Kong, at the following principal
place of business: Level 31, International CommeZeatre, 1 Austin Road West, Kowloon, Hong
Kong.

The Company is a restricted licence bank undeB#mgking Ordinance in Hong Kong and the Branch
is licensed as a wholesale bank in Singapore. Cldrepany is regulated by the HKMA and the Branch
is regulated by the MAS. It is also a registemstifution under the Hong Kong Securities and Fegur
Ordinance. The principal activities of the Compang to engage in the business of banking including
deposit taking and lending. It also acts (a) anagn behalf of its customers in connection wité t
provision of general investment, securities andireg dealing, as well as discretionary management
and (b) as introducing broker to Morgan Stanley & Giternational plc for the provision of clearance
settlement and custody services in relation tafbeementioned transactions.

As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, tnep&uwy’'s immediate parent undertaking was
MSHKL, which was incorporated in Hong Kong.

The Company’s ultimate parent undertaking and afliig entity is Morgan Stanley which, together

with the Company and Morgan Stanley's other subsydundertakings, form the Morgan Stanley
Group. Morgan Stanley is incorporated in the StdtBelaware, the United States of America. Copies
of its financial statements can be obtained fhdtp://www.morganstanley.com/investorrelations.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance

The Company has prepared its annual financial retatés in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) and interpretatiossued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the Hong Kong Cpamies Ordinance.

New standards and interpretations adopted during tle year

The following standards, amendments to standards iaterpretations relevant to the Company’s
operations were adopted during the year. Exceptevbtherwise stated, these standards, amendments
to standards and interpretations did not have anmiaatmpact on the Company’s financial statements.

An amendment to HKFRS BShare-based Paymentas issued by the HKICPA in August 2016, for
application in accounting periods beginning onfteral January 2018. Early application is permitted

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments(“HKFRS 9”) was issued by the HKICPA in Novemb2009,
amended in December 2013, and revised and reisgut HKICPA in September 2014. HKFRS 9 is
applicable retrospectively, except where othenpigscribed by transitional provisions of the stadda
and is effective for accounting periods beginning ar after 1 January 2018. The Company has
adopted the requirements of HKFRS 9 from 1 JanRafy.

11



MORGAN STANLEY ASIA INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2018

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

New standards and interpretations adopted during tle year (continued)

The main aspects of HKFRS 9 which impact the Comiaa its requirements relating to:
» Classification and measurement of financial assets

The classification and measurement of financiat@sis determined based upon how these
financial assets are managed (the Company’'s bissmesdel) and their contractual cash flow
characteristics. Measurement will be either at dised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) or fair value thrdugrofit or loss (“FVPL").

¢ Impairment of financial instruments

The impairment requirements are based on expecttit dosses (“ECLs”) and apply to
financial assets measured at amortised cost aRd@CI.

The Company has completed a project to implemenERIK 9. As part of this project, the Company
performed an evaluation of its business modelsaaraView of the contractual terms of financial ésse
measured at amortised cost and FVOCI under HKFRSehsure that they are compatible with such
classifications.

As a result of this evaluation, government debtigées held as available-for-sale have reclassife
FVOCI with a consequent transfer of the accumulatesilable-for-sale reserve to FVOCI reserve.
There was no impact on the Company’s retained egsrat 1 January 2018.

For lending products and other debt financial unskents, a model-based approach has been adopted,
the key aspects of which are:

e The impairment allowance is based on ECLs assatiaith the lifetime cash shortfalls that
will result if a default occurs in the twelve mosthfter the reporting date (“twelve month
ECL"), unless there has been a significant incréasgedit risk (“SICR”) since origination,
in which case the ECL is based on all possible defaover the total expected life of the
instrument (“lifetime ECL”").

« ldentifying whether assets have experienced a S{DBe origination. When determining
whether credit risk has increased significantlycsininitial recognition, the Company
considers both quantitative and qualitative infaioraand analysis, based on the Company’s
historical experience and expert credit risk assess, including forward-looking
information.

e Estimating ECL, reflecting an unbiased and the abiliy-weighted impact of multiple
future economic scenarios. ECLs are calculateaguiree main components: probability of
default (“PD"), the expected loss given default&D”) and an estimated exposure at default
(“EAD"). These parameters are generally derivednfrinternally developed statistical
models, combined with historical, current and famvbooking customer and macro-
economic data.

For some portfolios of financial assets, ECLs hbgen estimated to be close to zero, reflecting the
benefit of collateral or other credit mitigants.

There was no impact to the retained earnings oCtpany as at 1 January 2018 as a result of the
implementation of the ECL impairment approach.

Under the transitional provisions of the standatte Company's opening statement of financial
position at the date of initial application (1 Janu2018) has been restated, with no restatement of
comparative periods. However, the Company hastagdhe presentation of its primary statements on
transition to HKFRS 9 to provide more relevant imnfiation to the users of the financial statements.
The comparative period has been re-presented ¢gm &i the new format in the annual financial
statements.

12



MORGAN STANLEY ASIA INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2018

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)
New standards and interpretations adopted during tle year (continued)

Note 3 Summary of significant accounting policiesyides the new accounting policies under HKFRS
9 applicable from 1 January 2018, alongside thewtting policies applicable to 31 December 2017
under HKAS 39Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

To reflect the differences between HKFRS 9 and HKB% HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures (“HKFRS 7”) was updated by the HKICPA and the GQuany adopted the updated
HKFRS 7 for the year beginning 1 January 2018. Tipelated requirements include transition
disclosures shown in note 4, in addition to quilitaand quantitative information about the EClsat
out in note 24,

HKFRS 15‘Revenue from Contracts with Customef$1KFRS 15”") was issued by the HKICPA in
July 2014 for retrospective application in accoogtperiods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. In
addition, amendments relating to clarification$itéFRS 15 were issued by the HKICPA in June 2016
requiring application in accounting periods begngnon or after 1 January 2018. Refer to note 4 for
further information.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 ‘Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Constlen’ was issued by the
HKICPA in June 2017 for application in accountirgyipds beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

There were no other standards, amendments to stindainterpretations relevant to the Company’s
operations which were adopted during the year.

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

At the date of authorisation of these financiatesteents, the following amendments to standards and
interpretation relevant to the Company’s operatiopse issued by the HKICPA but not mandatory for

accounting periods beginning 1 January 2018. Exadyatre otherwise stated, the Company does not
expect that the adoption of the following amendmeot standards and interpretations will have a
material impact on the Company’s financial statetsien

As part of the 2015-2017 Annual Improvements Cyelblished in February 2018, the HKICPA made
amendments to the following standard that is relet@the Company’s operations: HKAS 18come
Taxe$ for application in accounting periods beginnimgy or after 1 January 2019.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 ‘Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatmentgas issued by the HKICPA in July 2017
for application in accounting periods beginningaorafter 1 January 2019.

Amendments to HKAS 1Presentation of Financial Statementshd HKAS 8‘Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errovgére issued by the HKICPA in January 2019 for
application in accounting periods beginning onfteral January 2020.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements of the Company are prepaneer the historical cost basis, except for aerta
financial instruments that have been measurediatvéue as explained in the accounting policies
below.

Critical judgements in applying the Company’s accouting policies

In applying the Company’s accounting policies, jidgements made by management other than those
involving estimations noted below, that have theshwignificant effect on the amounts recognised in
the financial statements are existences of impaitroé financial assets. The Company believes that
the judgements utilised in preparing the finanstatements are reasonable, relevant and reliable.

The Company believes that the estimates used ipaprey the financial statements are reasonable,
relevant and reliable. Actual results could difieam these estimates.

13



MORGAN STANLEY ASIA INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2018

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the Company's financial statesmerquires management to make judgements
involving estimations and other assumptions regardhe valuation of certain financial instruments
that affect the financial statements and relatsdldsures. For further details on the assumptios a
estimation uncertainties in determining the failuesof certain assets and liabilities, see notd$ &(d

27.

The going concern assumption

The notes to the financial statements include tben@any’'s objectives, policies and processes for
managing its capital; its financial risk managemajectives; details of its financial instrumenrasid

its exposures to credit risk and liquidity risk.t&aing sufficient liquidity and capital to withste
market pressures remains central to the MorgarleSt@roup’s and the Company’s strategy.

Taking the above factors into consideration, thee€bors believe it is reasonable to assume that the
Company will have access to adequate resourcesomtinoe in operational existence for the
foreseeable future. Accordingly, they continue dogat the going concern basis in preparing the dnnua
report and financial statements.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a. Functional currency

Items included in the financial statements are measand presented in US dollars, the currenciief t
primary economic environment in which the Compapgrates.

All currency amounts in the financial statementsmunded to the nearest thousand US dollars.
b. Foreign currencies

All monetary assets and liabilities denominatedunrencies other than US dollars are translatea int
US dollars at the rates ruling at the reportingedd@tansactions and non-monetary assets and tiesili
denominated in currencies other than US dollargecerded at the rates prevailing at the datesef t
transactions. From 1 January 2018, foreign exchdiftgrences arising from translation differencés o
the amortised cost of financial assets measuréd/@cCl are recognised in the income statement. All
other gains and losses from movements in foreigthaxge rates on financial assets measured at
FVOCI are recorded in other comprehensive incometil .B1 December 2017, foreign exchange
differences on available-for-sale financial asse¢se recorded in the ‘Available-for-sale reserve’ i
equity, with the exception of translation differescon the amortised cost of monetary available-for-
sale financial assets, which are recognised throtgh income statement. All other translation
differences are taken through the income statemé&xthange differences recognised in the income
statement are presented in ‘Other revenue’ or ‘Oekpenses’, except where noted in 3(c) below.

C. Financial instruments
i) Financial instruments mandatorily at fair value through profit and loss
Trading financial instruments
Trading financial instruments include all derivavcontracts.

Trading financial instruments are initially recodden trade date at fair value (see note 3(d) below)
All subsequent changes in fair value and foreigohernge differences are reflected in the income
statement in ‘Net trading income/(expense)’.

For all trading financial instruments, transactioosts are excluded from the initial fair value
measurement of the financial instrument. Thesescast recognised in the income statement in
‘Other expenses’.

14



MORGAN STANLEY ASIA INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2018

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINU ED)
C. Financial instruments (continued)

i) Financial assets measured at FVOCI

Applicable from 1 January 2018

Financial assets measured at FVOCI include govenhoebt securities.

Financial assets measured at FVOCI are financ&timents which are held within a business model
whose objective is achieved both by collecting axetual cash flows and selling financial assets and
the contractual terms of which give rise on spedifilates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal @mt outstanding. Financial assets measured at
FVOCI are recorded on trade date and are initisdlgognised and subsequently measured at fair
value (see note 3(d) below).

Transaction costs that are directly attributableht® acquisition of a financial asset measured at
FVOCI are added to the fair value on initial recidign.

Interest calculated using the effective interese rdEIR”) method (see note 3(c)(iv) below) is
recognised in the income statement in ‘Interesonmg’. Foreign exchange differences on the
amortised cost of the asset are recognised inrnbenie statement in ‘Other revenue’ or ‘Other
expenses’. Movement in ECL allowance is recognigedoth the income statement in ‘Net
impairment loss on financial instruments’ and ir tstatement of comprehensive income in the
‘FVOCI reserve’. All other gains and losses on ficial assets measured at FVOCI are recognised in
the ‘FVOCI reserve’ within equity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measuredV&®, the cumulative gain or loss in the ‘FVOCI
reserve’ is reclassified to the income statemedtraported in ‘Net gains/(losses) on derecognitibn
financial assets measured at FVOCI'.

iii) Available-for-sale financial assets
Applicable until 31 December 2017
Financial assets classified as available-for-satkided government debt securities.

Financial assets classified as available-for-sateewnon-derivative financial assets that were eithe
designated in this category, or not classified iy @f the other categories applicable until 31
December 2017. Financial assets classified adadleifor-sale were recorded on trade date and
were initially recognised and subsequently measatddir value (see note 3(d) below).

Transaction costs that are directly attributabléhtoacquisition of an available-for-sale finanaatet
are added to the fair value on initial recognition.

For debt instruments, interest calculated usingetfective interest rate method (see note 3(c)(iv)
below), impairment losses and reversals of impantnesses and foreign exchange differences on the
amortised cost of the asset are recognised imtt@rie statement in ‘Net income from other financial
assets held at fair value’. All other gains andésson debt instruments classified as availabledte

are recognised in the ‘Available-for-sale resewihin equity.

On disposal or impairment of an available-for-dalancial asset, the cumulative gain or loss in the
‘Available-for-sale reserve’ is reclassified to timeome statement and reported in ‘Net income from
other financial assets held at fair value’.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2018

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINU ED)
C. Financial instruments (continued)

iv) Financial assets and financial liabilities at enortised cost

Applicable from 1 January 2018

Financial assets are recognised at amortised dumh whe Company’s business model objective is to
collect the contractual cash flows of the assetswanere these cash flows are SPPI on the principal
amount outstanding until maturity. Such assetsegegnised when the Company becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument. Tingruments are initially measured at fair values(se
note 3(d) below) and subsequently measured at @mdricost less ECL allowance. Interest is
recognised in the income statement in ‘Interesbrime’, using the EIR method as described below.
Transaction costs are incremental costs that aectti attributable to the acquisition, issue or
disposal of a financial instrument. Transactiontedsat are directly attributable to the acquisitaf

the financial asset are added to the fair valuéndial recognition. ECL and reversals thereof are
recognised in the income statement in ‘Net impairhh@ss on financial instruments’.

Financial assets at amortised cost include cash stadt-term deposits, loans and advances to
customers and trade and other receivables.

Applicable until 31 December 2017

Financial assets classified as loans and receivabiére recognised when the Company became a
party to the contractual provisions of the instraim@hey were initially measured at fair value (see
note 3(d) below) and subsequently measured at &mdrtost less allowance for impairment. Interest
was recognised in the income statement in ‘Inter@sdme’, using the EIR method as described
below. Transaction costs that were directly atidble to the acquisition of the financial asseteve
added to the fair value on initial recognition. lamment losses and reversals of impairment losses o
financial assets classified as loans and receigabége recognised in the income statement in ‘Other
expense’.

Financial assets classified as loans and receisab&uded cash and short-term deposits, loans and
advances to customers and trade and other recesvabl

Applicable until 31 December 2017 and from 1 January 2018

Financial liabilities are classified as being supsntly measured at amortised cost, except whese th
are held for trading or are designated as measiré¥PL. They are recognised when the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions @fitstrument and are initially measured at faiugal
(see note 3(d) below) and subsequently measurednattised cost. Interest is recognised in the
income statement in ‘Interest expense’ using the Elethod as described below. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issue of raficial liability are deducted from the fair valoe
initial recognition.

The EIR method is a method of calculating the aisexditcost of a financial instrument (or a group of
financial instruments) and of allocating the ingremcome or interest expense over the expected lif
of the financial instrument. The EIR is the ratattexactly discounts the estimated future cash
payments and receipts through the expected litheffinancial instrument (or, where appropriate, a
shorter period) to the carrying amount of the firiahinstrument. The EIR is established on initial

recognition of the financial instrument. The c#dtion of the EIR includes all fees and commissions
paid or received, transaction costs, and discaampsemiums that are an integral part of the EIR.

Financial liabilities classified at amortised costlude deposits and trade and other payables.
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MORGAN STANLEY ASIA INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2018

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINU ED)
d. Fair value
Fair value measurement

Fair value is defined as the price that would heeireed to sell an asset or paid to transfer alitgbi
(i.e. the “exit price”) in an orderly transactioattveen market participants at the measurement date.

Fair value is a market-based measure considered fine perspective of a market participant rather
than an entity-specific measure. Therefore, eveanumarket assumptions are not readily available,
assumptions are set to reflect those that the Coynpealieves market participants would use in pgcin
the asset or liability at the measurement date.

Where the Company manages a group of financiataasel financial liabilities on the basis of itd ne
exposure to either market risks or credit risk, @@mpany measures the fair value of that group of
financial instruments consistently with how marfatticipants would price the net risk exposurehat t
measurement date.

In determining fair value, the Company uses variaisiation approaches and establishes a hierarchy
for inputs used in measuring fair value that masési the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimises the use of unobservable inputs by remgithat the most observable inputs be used when
available. Observable inputs are inputs that mapieeticipants would use in pricing the asset or
liability that were developed based on market détained from sources independent of the Company.
Unobservable inputs are inputs that reflect assiomptthat the Company believes other market
participants would use in pricing the asset orilligh that are developed based on the best inftiona
available in the circumstances.

The hierarchy is broken down into three levels Hase the observability of inputs as follows, with
Level 1 being the highest and Level 3 being theestevel:

* Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in an actiaek®t for identical assets or liabilities

Valuations based on quoted prices in active markteis the Morgan Stanley Group has the
ability to access for identical assets or liakghti Valuation adjustments and block discounts are
not applied to Level 1 instruments. Since valuatiare based on quoted prices that are readily
and regularly available in an active market, vabratof these products does not entail a
significant degree of judgement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2018

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINU ED)
d. Fair value (continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)

* Level 2 - Valuation techniques using observableiiap

Valuations based on one or more quoted prices irketathat are not active or for which all
significant inputs are observable, either direotlyndirectly.

* Level 3 - Valuation techniques with significant tiservable inputs

Valuations based on inputs that are unobservabte significant to the overall fair value
measurement.

The availability of observable inputs can vary frpnoduct to product and is affected by a wide \grie
of factors, including, for example, the type of ¢wot, whether the product is new and not yet
established in the marketplace, the liquidity ofrkeés and other characteristics particular to the
product. To the extent that valuation is based avdefs or inputs that are less observable or
unobservable in the market, the determination iofaue requires more judgement. Accordingly, the
degree of judgement exercised by the Company ierahing fair value is greatest for instruments
categorised in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

The Company considers prices and inputs that aremuas of the measurement date, including during
periods of market dislocation. In periods of martislocation, the observability of prices and itgpu
may be reduced for many instruments. This conditould cause an instrument to be reclassified
from Level 1 to Level 2 or Level 2 to Level 3 okthair value hierarchy.

In certain cases, the inputs used to measure &irevmay fall into different levels of the fair val
hierarchy. In such cases, for disclosure purpdbeslevel in the fair value hierarchy within whitte
fair value measurement falls in its entirety isedetined based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement in itsrety.

For assets and liabilities that are transferredvéen levels in the fair value hierarchy during the
period, fair values are ascribed as if the asselisllities had been transferred as of beginrofighe
period.

Valuation techniques

Many cash instruments and OTC derivative contrhate bid and ask prices that can be observed in
the marketplace. Bid prices reflect the highestepthat a party is willing to pay for an assetkAs
prices represent the lowest price that a partyiikng to accept for an asset. The Company carries
positions at the point within the bid-ask ranget tingets its best estimate of fair value. For offisgt
positions in the same financial instrument, the esgmice within the bid-ask spread is used to measur
both the long and short positions.

Fair value for many cash instruments and OTC d#vigecontracts is derived using pricing models.
Pricing models take into account the contract terass well as multiple inputs including, where
applicable, commodity prices, equity prices, inséreate yield curves, credit curves, correlation,
creditworthiness of the counterparty, creditwordsis of the Company, option volatility and currency
rates.

Where appropriate, valuation adjustments are madedount for various factors such as liquiditk ris
(bid-ask adjustments), credit quality, model uraiety and concentration risk.

18
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2018

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINU ED)
d. Fair value (continued)
Valuation techniques (continued)

Adjustments for liquidity risk adjust model-derivedd-market levels of Level 2 and Level 3 financial

instruments for the bid-mid or mid-ask spread resplito properly reflect the exit price of a risk

position. Bid-mid and mid-ask spreads are markdévels observed in trade activity, broker quotes o
other external third-party data. Where these spread unobservable for the particular position in
guestion, spreads are derived from observabledafedimilar positions.

Valuation process

Valuation Control (“VC") within the Financial Comtt Group (“FCG”) is responsible for the
Company'’s fair value valuation policies, processed procedures. VC is independent of the business
units and reports to the Chief Financial Officertlvd Morgan Stanley Group (“CFO”), who has final
authority over the valuation of the Company’s figi@hinstruments. VC implements valuation control
processes designed to validate the fair value ®fGbmpany’s financial instruments measured at fair
value including those derived from pricing models.

Model ReviewVC, in conjunction with the Model Risk Managemerggartment (“MRM”"),
which reports to the Chief Risk Officer of the MargStanley Group (“CRO"), independently
reviews valuation models’ theoretical soundnesg #ppropriateness of the valuation
methodology and calibration techniques developedheybusiness units using observable
inputs. Where inputs are not observable, VC reviéves appropriateness of the proposed
valuation methodology to determine that it is cetesit with how a market participant would
arrive at the unobservable input. The valuationhho@tlogies utilised in the absence of
observable inputs may include extrapolation tecmesoand the use of comparable observable
inputs. As part of the review, VC develops a metiogy to independently verify the fair
value generated by the business unit’s valuationleiso The Company generally subjects
valuations and models to a review process initialig on a periodic basis thereafter.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINU ED)
d. Fair value (continued)
Valuation process (continued)

Independent Price VerificatioiThe business units are responsible for determittiegfair
value of financial instruments using approved vatiamodels and valuation methodologies.
Generally on a monthly basis, VC independently datks the fair values of financial
instruments determined using valuation models hgrdaning the appropriateness of the
inputs used by the business units and by testimgptance with the documented valuation
methodologies approved in the model review prodessribed above.

The results of this independent price verificatéom any adjustments made by VC to the fair
value generated by the business units are presémtethnagement of the Morgan Stanley
Group’s three business segments (i.e. InstitutidBaturities, Wealth Management and
Investment Management), the CFO and the CRO ogudaebasis.

VC uses recently executed transactions, other vhllker market data such as exchange data,
broker/ dealer quotes, third-party pricing vendansl aggregation services for validating the
fair values of financial instruments generated gsialuation models. VC assesses the
external sources and their valuation methodoloietetermine if the external providers meet
the minimum standards expected of a third-partgipgi source. Pricing data provided by
approved external sources are evaluated using éemnf approaches; for example, by
corroborating the external sources’ prices to etexttrades, by analysing the methodology
and assumptions used by the external source taaena price and/ or by evaluating how
active the third-party pricing source (or origimatisources used by the third-party pricing
source) is in the market. Based on this analysiS,génerates a ranking of the observable
market data designed to ensure that the highekedamarket data source is used to validate
the business unit’s fair value of financial instremts.

VC reviews the models and valuation methodologyduseprice new material Level 2 and
Level 3 transactions and both FCG and MRM must @gpthe fair value of the trade that is
initially recognised.

Level 3 Transactions/C reviews the business unit's valuation technigjteassess whether
these are consistent with market participant astonmgp

Gains and losses on inception

In the normal course of business, the fair valua dhancial instrument on initial recognition iset
transaction price (i.e. the fair value of the cdesation given or received). In certain circumsemc
however, the fair value will be based on other olmale current market transactions in the same
instrument, without modification or repackaging,ar a valuation technique whose variables include
only data from observable markets. When such eclexists, the Company recognises a gain or loss
on inception of the transaction.

When the use of unobservable market data has #isign impact on determining fair value at the
inception of the transaction, the entire initialrgar loss indicated by the valuation techniquaiathe
transaction date is not recognised immediatelyjiénibcome statement and is recognised instead when
the market data becomes observable or on maturiisposal of the instrument.

e. Derecognition of financial assets and liabilitie

Applicable until 31 December 2017 and from 1 January 2018

The Company derecognises a financial asset whewedhgactual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or when it transfers the financiaeasnd substantially all the risk and rewards of
ownership of the asset.

If the asset has been transferred, and the Commpeither transfers nor retains substantially althef
risks and rewards of the asset, then the Compaterrdimes whether it has retained control of the
asset.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINU ED)
e. Derecognition of financial assets and liabilite (continued)
Applicable until 31 December 2017 and from 1 January 2018 (continued)

If the Company has retained control of the assshall continue to recognise the financial asse¢hé
extent of its continuing involvement in the finaslcasset. If the Company has not retained cowofrol
the asset, it derecognises the asset and sepamtebnises any rights or obligation created aineid
in the transfer.

Upon derecognition of a financial asset, the défere between the previous carrying amount and the
sum of any consideration received, together with tlansfer of any cumulative gain/loss previously
recognised in equity, are recognised in the incostetement within ‘Net gains/(losses) on
derecognition of financial assets measured at FVOCI

The Company derecognises financial liabilities whba Company’s obligations are discharged or
cancelled or when they expire.

f. Impairment of financial instruments
Applicable from 1 January 2018

The Company recognises loss allowances for ECltHerfollowing financial instruments that are not
measured at FVPL:

» financial assets measured at amortised cost;
» financial assets measured at FVOCI;
Measurement of ECL

For financial assets, ECLs are the present valueash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between
contractual and expected cash flows) over the dggdie of the financial instrument, discounted at
the asset's EIR.

Where a financial asset is credit-impaired at #ggorting date, the ECL is measured as the differenc
between the asset’s gross carrying amount andréeept value of future cash flows, discounted at th
original EIR.

The Company applies a three stage approach to nmegdtCLs based on the change in credit risk
since initial recognition:

» Stage 1: if the credit risk of the financial instrent at the reporting date has not increased
significantly since initial recognition then theskallowance is calculated as the lifetime cash
shortfalls that will result if a default occurstime next 12 months, weighted by the probability
of that default occurring.

» Stage 2: if there has been a SICR since initiadgaition, the loss allowance is calculated as the
ECL over the remaining life of the financial instmant. If it is subsequently determined that
there has no longer been a SICR since initial neitiog, then the loss allowance reverts to
reflecting 12 month expected losses.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINU ED)
f. Impairment of financial instruments (continued)

Applicable from 1 January 2018 (continued)

Measurement of ECL (continued)

» Stage 3: if there has been a SICR since initiabgaition and the financial instrument is
deemed credit-impaired (see below for definitioncoédit-impaired), the loss allowance is
calculated as the ECL over the remaining life @& fimancial instrument. If it is subsequently
determined that there has no longer been a SICEe simitial recognition, then the loss
allowance reverts to reflecting 12 month expectsdés.

The Company’s accounting policy is to not use tbhe" credit risk practical expedient. As a restifte
Company monitors all financial instruments whichrd have a significant financing component that
are subject to impairment for SICR, with the exmaptof loans and advances to customers and the
corresponding interest receivable, for which dilife ECL is always calculated.

In general, ECLs are measured so that they reflect:

a) A probability-weighted range of possible outceme

b) The time value of money; and

¢) Relevant information relating to past, curremd future economic conditions.

When measuring ECLs, the Company considers mulipémarios, except where practical expedients
are used to determine ECLs. Practical expediestsised where they are consistent with the pringiple
described above.

The Company measures ECL on an individual assé$ basl has no purchased or originated credit-
impaired financial assets.

More information on measurement of ECLs is providedote 24.
Presentation of ECL

ECL is recognised in the income statement withiret'Nmpairment loss on financial instruments’.
ECLs on financial assets measured at amortised aa@stpresented as an ECL allowance. The
allowance reduces the net carrying amount on tbe ¢& the statement of financial position. Where th
financial asset is measured at FVOCI, the lossaaliee is recognised as an accumulated impairment
amount in other comprehensive income and doesedkice the carrying amount of the financial asset
on the statement of financial position.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINU ED)
f. Impairment of financial instruments (continued)

Applicable from 1 January 2018 (continued)

Credit-impaired financial instruments

In assessing the impairment of financial instrureemtder the ECL model, the Company defines
credit-impaired financial instruments in accordangih Credit Risk Management Department’s
policies and procedures. A financial instrumentrisdit-impaired when, based on current information
and events, it is probable that the Company willumable to collect all scheduled payments of
principal or interest when due according to thetiamual terms of the agreement.

Definition of Default

In assessing the impairment of financial instrureemhder the ECL model, the Company defines
default in accordance with Credit Risk Managememp&tment's policies and procedures. This
considers whether the borrower is unlikely to gayredit obligations to the Company in full ankes
into account qualitative indicators, such as breachf covenants. The definition of default also
includes a presumption that a financial asset whgcimore than 90 days past due (“DPD”) has
defaulted.

Write-offs

Loans and government debt securities are writtéigedher partially or in full) when they are deedne
uncollectible which generally occurs when all comeoialy reasonable means of recovering the
balance have been exhausted. Such determinatio&sexd on an indication that the borrower can no
longer pay the obligation, or that the proceedmfomllateral will not be sufficient to pay the bada.
Partial write-offs are made when a portion of tladahce is uncollectable. However, financial assets
that are written off could still be subject to emfement activities for recoveries of amounts diighé
amount to be written off is greater than the acdated loss allowance, the difference is reflected
directly in the income statement within ‘Net impagnt loss on financial instruments’ and is not
recognised in the loss allowance account. Any sylesat recoveries are credited to ‘Net impairment
loss on financial instruments’ within the incomatstnent.

Applicable until 31 December 2017

At each reporting date, an assessment was made skether there was any objective evidence of
impairment in the value of a financial asset clesdi as either available-for-sale or loans and
receivables. Impairment losses were recognised éeent had occurred which would have an adverse
impact on the expected future cash flows of antased the expected impact could be reliably
estimated.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale financideds were measured as the difference between cost
(net of any principal repayment and amortisationdl ghe current fair value (see note 3(d) above).
Where there was evidence that the available-f@-Baancial asset was impaired, the cumulative loss
that had been previously recognised in other cohgmsive income was reclassified from the
‘Available-for-sale reserve’ and recognised in itheome statement.

Impairment losses on loans and receivables weresuned as the difference between the carrying
amount of the loans and receivables and the presdn¢ of estimated cash flows discounted at the
asset’s original EIR. Such impairment losses wemgnised in the income statement within ‘Other
expense’ and were recognised against the carryimguat of the impaired asset on the statement of
financial position. Interest on the impaired assettinues to be accrued on the reduced carrying
amount based on the original EIR of the asset.

For all financial assets, if in a subsequent yder,amount of the estimated impairment loss deerkas
because of an event occurring after the impairmeas recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss was reversed as described forelewant categories of financial asset in note B)c)(
(i) and (iv). Any reversal was limited to the ext that the value of the asset would not exceed th
original amortised cost of the asset had no impaitnoccurred.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINU ED)
g. Revenue recognition

Revenues are recognised when the promised semieedelivered to the Company’s customers, in an
amount that is based on the consideration the Coynpapects to receive in exchange for those
services when such amounts are not probable offisgmt reversal.

Fee and commission income

Fee and commission income results from transadtased arrangements in which the client is charged
a fee for the execution of transactions. Such ressrprimarily arise from the Company providing
services in connection with the provision of geh@raestment, securities and futures dealing, a we
as discretionary management to its customers andtaslucing broker to Morgan Stanley & Co.
International plc for the provision of clearancettiement and custody services in relation to the
aforementioned transactions. Fee and commissioaniacis recognised on trade date when the
performance obligation is satisfied.

h. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and dedegusits with banks along with highly liquid
investments, with original maturities of three mentor less, that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and subject to insignificant riskhange in value.

i. Income tax
The tax expense represents the sum of the taxntlyrpayable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is calculated based mabia profit for the year. Taxable profit may diffe
from profit/(loss) before income tax as reportedhia income statement because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductiblethier years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Company's ligpildr current tax is calculated using tax rated tha
have been enacted or substantively enacted byeffwtmg date. Current tax is charged or credited i
the income statement, except when it relates testecharged or credited directly to other
comprehensive income or equity, in which case thereat tax is also recorded within other
comprehensive income or equity respectively.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINU ED)
i. Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payableeoowerable on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the finanstatements and the corresponding tax bases ugke in
computation of taxable profit, and is accountedusing the balance sheet liability method. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for akahle temporary differences and deferred tax assets
recognised to the extent that it is probable theaalble profits will be available against which detible
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is vexikat each reporting date and limited to the éxten
that it is probable that sufficient taxable profitél be available to allow all or part of the as$e be
recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates thateampected to apply in the period when the liabikt
settled or the asset is realised. Deferred takasged or credited in the income statement, exgéph

it relates to items charged or credited directlytioer comprehensive income or equity, in whichecas
the deferred tax is reflected within other compredie income or equity, respectively.

Current tax assets are offset against currentidaiities when there is a legally enforceable tighset

off current tax assets against current tax lidesitand the Company intends to settle its curraxt t
assets and current tax liabilities on a net basistoorealise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. Deferred tax assets and liabildéies offset when there is a legally enforceablbtrig

set off current tax assets against current tavilitigs and when they relate to income taxes le\bgd
the same taxation authority and the Company intéadsettle its current tax assets and current tax
liabilities on a net basis.

j- Employee compensation plans
i) Equity-settled share-based compensation plans

Morgan Stanley issues awards in the form of rdsulicstock units (“RSUs”) to employees of the
Morgan Stanley Group for services rendered to tbm@any. Awards are classified as equity-settled
and the cost of the equity-based transactions &ntployees is measured based on the fair value of
the equity instruments at grant date. The fair @afiRSUs is based on the market price of Morgan
Stanley shares. Awards are amortised over thecgeperiod. An estimation of awards that will be
forfeited prior to vesting due to the failure totisly service conditions or non-market based
performance conditions is considered in calculathegtotal compensation cost to be amortised over
the requisite service period.

Compensation expense for awards with performanoeditons is recognised based on the probable
outcome of the performance condition at each reppdate. Compensation expense for awards with
market-based conditions is recognised irrespeaifvihe probability of the market condition being
achieved and is not reversed if the market condisaot met.

Generally awards contain clawback and cancellgirmvisions which permit the Company to cancel
all or a portion of the award under specified anstances. Compensation expense for those awards is
adjusted to fair value based upon changes in theegtrice of Morgan Stanley’'s common stock until
conversion, exercise or expiration.

For year end equity-based awards anticipated tgraeted to retirement-eligible employees under
award terms that do not contain a future servigairement, the Company accrues the estimated cost
over the course of the calendar year precedingythet date, which reflects the period over which
compensation is earned.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINU ED)
j- Employee compensation plans (continued)
i) Equity-settled share-based compensation plar{sontinued)

The Company pays Morgan Stanley in consideratiothefprocurement of the transfer of shares to
employees via a chargeback agreement under whishcibmmitted to pay to Morgan Stanley the
grant date fair value as well as subsequent movenerhe fair value of those awards at the time of
delivery to the employees.

Share-based compensation expense is recorded Wifaiff costs’ and ‘Directors’ remuneration’ in
‘Other expenses’ in the income statement.

i) Deferred cash-based compensation plans

Morgan Stanley also maintains deferred compensalams on behalf of the Company for the benefit
of certain current and former employees that pradreturn to the participating employees based
upon the performance of various referenced investsneliabilities for these awards, which are
included within ‘Trade and other payables’ in tik@ement of financial position, are measured based
on the notional value of the award granted, adjuébe changes in the fair value of the referenced
investments fair value and recognised over timadoordance with the awards’ vesting conditions.
For unvested awards, the expense is recognisedttoveservice period. For vested awards with only
notional earnings on the referenced investmengsexipense is fully recognised in the current period

For year end awards anticipated to be grantedtiitemgent-eligible employees under award terms that

do not contain a future service requirement, thenfany accrued the estimated cost over the course
of the calendar year preceding the grant date, wtaflects the period over which the compensation

is earned.

The related expense is recorded within ‘Staff caatsl ‘Directors’ remuneration’ in ‘Other expense’
in the income statement.

k. Post-employment benefits

The Company operates defined contribution post-eympént plans. Additionally, the Branch of the
Company participates in a defined contribution ptae Singapore Central Provident Fund.

Contributions due in relation to the Company’'s deéi contribution post-employment plan are
recognised in ‘Other expense’ in the income stateméen payable.

Details of the plans are given in note 31 to tHewmcial statements.
l. Offsetting of financial assets and financial liailities

Where there is a currently legally enforceable trighset off the recognised amounts and an intantio
to either settle on a net basis or to realise #isetaand the liability simultaneously, financiatets and
financial liabilities are offset and the net amoimpresented on the statement of financial positio
the absence of such conditions, financial assetdiaancial liabilities are presented on a grossida
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4. TRANSITION TO HKFRS 9 AND HKFRS 15

As discussed at note 2, the Company adopted twostewdards from 1 January 2018, HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 15, which have no impact to retained earnatghe date of adoption.

HKFRS 9

The disclosures below set out the impact of adgptiKFRS 9 on the statement of financial position,
including the effect of replacing HKAS 39’s incudreredit loss models with the ECL framework
under HKFRS 9.

The following table shows the original measurentiegories in accordance with HKAS 39 and the
new measurement categories under HKFRS 9 for thep@oy’s financial assets and financial
liabilities as at 1 January 2018 in accordance withCompany's updated accounting policies on the
classification and impairment of financial instrumgeunder HKFRS 9 as set out in note 3.

Original
Original New carrying
classification  classification amount New carrying
under under under amount under
Note HKAS 39 HKFRS 9 HKAS 39 HKFRS 9
Financial assets US$'000 US$'000
Cash and short- Loans and Financial assets at 188,267 188,267
term deposits receivables amortised cost
Trading financial FVPL FVPL (trading 2,81: 2,81:
assets
Loans and a Loans anc Financial assets 1,430,41 1,430,416
advances to receivables amortised cost
customers
Investment b Available-for- Financial assets 2,410,435 2,410,435
securities sale measured at
FVOCI
Trade and other Loans and Financial assets at 18,781 18,781
receivables receivables amortised cost
Total financial 4,050,712 4,050,712
assets
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4. TRANSITION TO HKFRS 9 AND HKFRS 15 (CONTINUED)
HKFRS 9 (continued)

Original
Original New carrying
classification  classification amount New carrying
under under under amount under
HKAS 39 HKFRS 9 HKAS 39 HKFRS 9
Financial liabilities US$'000 US$'000
Deposits Financial Financial 3,686,326 3,686,326
liabilities at liabilities at
amortised cost amortised cost
Trading financial FVPL FVPL (trading) 15,771 15,771
liabilities
Trade and other Financial Financial 120,039 120,039
payables liabilities at liabilities at
amortised cost amortised cost
Total financial 3,822,136 3,822,136
liabilities

The Company’s accounting policies on the clasdificaof financial instruments under HKFRS 9 are
set out in note 3. The application of these pddigiesulted in the reclassifications set out intdisde
above and explained below.

a. Loans and advances to customers are classifiethascfal assets at amortised cost where
they are in a held to collect business model aait ttontractual terms are SPPI.

b. The government debt securities are classified a®®Vas these debt instruments are
managed within a business model of collecting @mtral cash flows and selling financial
assets.
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4. TRANSITION TO HKFRS 9 AND HKFRS 15 (CONTINUED)
HKFRS 9 (continued)

The following table reconciles the carrying amoumtgler HKAS 39 to the carrying amounts under
HKFRS 9 on transition to HKFRS 9 on 1 January 206¢8howing where there has been a presentation
reclassification.

- HKAS 39 - HKFRS 9
carrying amount carrying amount
31 December 201 Reclassification 1 January 2018
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
Financial assets
Amortised cost
Cash and short-term deposits 188,267 - 188,267
Loans and advanc to customet 1,430,41 - 1,430,411
Trade and other receivables 18,781 - 18,781
Total amortised cost 1,637,46¢ - 1,637,464
Available-for-sale
Investment securities:
Opening balance 2,410,43¢ - 2,410,435
To FVOCI - (2,410,435 (2,410,435)
Total available-for-sale 2,410,43 (2,410,43¢ -
FVOCI
Investment securities:
Opening balance - - -
From availabl-for-sale - 2,410,43! 2,410,43
Total FVOCI - 2,410,43¢ 2,410,435
FVPL (trading)
Trading financial assets 2,813 - 2,813
Total FVPL (trading) 2,813 - 2,813
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4. TRANSITION TO HKFRS 9 AND HKFRS 15 (CONTINUED)
HKFRS 9 (continued)

) HKAS 39 ) HKFRS 9
carrying amount carrying amount
31 December 201 Reclassification 1 January 2018
us$'o0c US$'000 US$'000
Financial liabilities
Amortised cost
Deposit: 3,686,32 - 3,686,32:
Trade and other payables 120,039 - 120,039
Total amortised cost 3,806,36¢ - 3,806,365
FVPL (trading)
Trading financial liabilities 15,771 - 15,771
Total FVPL (trading) 15,771 - 15,771

The following table analyses the impact, net of @ixtransition to HKFRS 9 on reserves. There is no
impact on other components of equity.

Available-

for-sale
reserve FVOCI reserve
Impact of adopting HKFRS 9 US$'000 US$'000
Closing balance under HKAS 39 (31 December 2017) (696) -
Reclassification of investment securities from &lae-for-sale ta 696 (696)

FVOCI

Opening balance under HKFRS 9 (1 January z - (696)

HKFRS 9: ECLs
The Company had no impairment provisions under HK3®Sat 31 December 2017 and has no ECL

impairment allowance as at 1 January 2018 (see 2idtew standards and interpretations adopted
during the year.

30



MORGAN STANLEY ASIA INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2018

4. TRANSITION TO HKFRS 9 AND HKFRS 15 (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15

At 1 January 2018, the Company adopted HKFRS 13coordance with the transition provisions
therein. The Company has applied the provisiondKFRS 15 retrospectively only to contracts that
were not completed as at 1 January 2018, the datmital application. The Company has not
retrospectively restated contracts for modificagitefore the beginning of the earliest period preesk
and prior periods have not been restated, whicle mevimpact to retained earnings. As a result of
adopting HKFRS 15, the accounting for certain teations has changed, resulting in certain
transactions now being presented on a gross ba@kis.adoption had the following impact:

Year ended

31 December 2018

US$'000
Increase in other revenue 6,420
Increase in other expenses 6,420

5. NET INCOME FROM OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD AT FAIR VALUE

2018 2017
US$'000 US$'000
Available-for-sale financial asse

Interest incom - 25,69¢
Foreign exchange revaluation - 110,925

Net fair value losses reclassified from the
available-for-sale reserve on disposal of as - (338)
- 136,283

6. NET GAINS ON DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AT F VOCI

The table below summarises the carrying amounthefderecognised financial assets measured at
FVOCI and the gain on derecognition.

2018
Carrying
amount of Gains
financial assets arising from
sold derecognition
US$'000 US$'000
Investment securities 1,021,581 373
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7. FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

2018 2017

US$'000 US$'000

Sales commissions and fees 245,37¢ 214,520
Other fees 10 15
245,38¢ 214,535

Of which, revenue from contracts with customers 16,98C N/A

Revenue from contracts with customers

‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ was iniced by HKFRS 15, for which comparative
periods have not been restated. The equivaleutefifpr 2017 of US$3,983,000 is presented within
‘Fee and commission income’.

Performance obligations

The following table presents revenues in the currggar. The Company had no unsatisfied
performance obligations from contracts with custmmaith original expected durations exceeding 1
year as at 31 December 2018.

Current contract revenues

2018

US$'000

Commission income 16,970
Other revenue from contracts with custon 10
Total revenue from contracts with custon 16,98(

32



MORGAN STANLEY ASIA INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2018

8. OTHER REVENUE

2018 2017

US$'000 US$'000

Net foreign exchange gains - 1,408
Management charges to other Morgan Stanley Group

undertakings 6,420 1,889

Others 83 132

6,503 3,429

9. INTEREST INCOME AND INTEREST EXPENSE

No other gains or losses have been recognisedijece of financial assets measured at amortised cos
other than as disclosed as ‘Interest income’ andida exchange differences disclosed in ‘Other
expenses’ (note 10).

No other gains or losses have been recognisedspece of financial liabilities measured at amodise
cost other than as disclosed as ‘Interest expeand’ foreign exchange differences disclosed inedth
expenses’ (note 10).

The table below presents interest income and erpleynsiccounting classification. Interest income and
expense is calculated using the effective intemesthod for financial assets and financial liakakti
measured at amortised cost and financial assetsurezhat FVOCI.

2018 2017

US$'000 US$'000

Financial assets measured at amortised cost 40,65: -
Financial assets measured at FVOCI 35,100 -
Loans and receivables - 26,488
Total interest income 75,752 26,488
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost (23,517) (33,570)
Total interest expense (23,517) (33,570)
Net interest income/(expense) 52,235 (7,082)
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10. OTHER EXPENSES

2018 2017
US$'000 US$'000
Staff costs 133,23¢ 128,067
Directors’ remuneration
Fees 134 82
Contribution to defined contribution plan 70 71
Others 6,804 10,211
Net foreign exchange losses 5,467 -
Auditors’ remuneration:
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for the afdhe
Company's annual financial statements 569 579
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for atkevices tc
the Company 2 2
Non-audit professional services 7,435 10,049
Management charges from other Morgan Stanley Group
undertakings relating to staff costs 539 128
Management charges from other Morgan Stanley Group
undertakings relating to other services 68,96C 57,010
Others 3,816 3,512
227,03t 209,711

Included within ‘Staff costs’, ‘Directors’ remunéien’ and ‘Management charges from other Morgan
Stanley Group undertakings’ are amounts totallirg$s,521,000 (2017: US$13,197,000) in relation
to equity-settled share-based compensation plaargtey to employees of the Company. These costs
reflect the amortisation of equity-based awardseiation to current and previous years’ awards and
are therefore not directly aligned with other st@af&ts in the current year. Similarly, includedhivit
‘Staff costs’, ‘Directors’ remuneration’ and ‘Marement charges from other Morgan Stanley Group
undertakings’ are amounts totalling US$14,996,0@017: US$14,008,000) in relation to the
amortisation of current and previous years’ awafldeferred cash-based compensation, granted to
employees of the Company.

Further information regarding employee compensatians is provided in note 30.

For the years ended 31 December 2018 and 31 Dece20th&, the Company has not paid any (a)
payments or benefits in respect of the terminatibthe service of directors whether in the capaoity
directors or in any other capacity while being aedior of the Company, and (b) consideration
provided to or receivable by any third party forkimg available the services of a person as a direct
or in any other capacity while being a directottef Company.

During the year, the Company has not granted aanpdoquasi-loans nor entered into any other

dealings in favor of (a) the Directors, (b) enstieontrolled by the Directors; or (c) entities cecied
with the Directors (2017: Nil).
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11. INCOME TAX

2018 2017
US$'000 US$'000
Current tax
Current year
Hong Kong 9,210 4,638
Other jurisdiction 1,959 742
11,16¢ 5,380
Adjustments in respect of prior years
Hong Kong 44 (43)
Other jurisdiction 21 (50)
65 (93)
11,234 5,287
Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 2,101 (951)
Adjustments in respect of prior years 8 (21)
2,109 (972)
Income tax 13,343 4,315

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

The current year income tax expense is lower (20dwer) than that resulting from applying the
standard rate of profits tax in Hong Kong for tleayof 16.5% (2017:16.5%). The main differences are
explained below:

2018 2017

US$'000 US$'000

Profit before income tax 87,61¢ 29,361
Income tax using the standard rate of profits tax i

Hong Kong of 16.5% 14,457 4,845

Impact on tax of:

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 1,583 1,834

Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses - (44)

Tax exempt income (2,010) (1,823)

Concessionary tax rate (794) (450)

Effect of tax rates in foreign jurisdiction 85 47

Tax under/(over) provided in prior years 73 (70)

Withholding tax expensed 10 6

Other (61) (30)

Total income tax in the income statement 13,348 4,315
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11. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

In addition to the amount charged to the incomeestant, the aggregate amount of current and
deferred tax relating to each component of othemgrehensive income was as follows:

2018 2017
Tax Tax
Before  (expense) Net of Before benefit/ Net of
tax benefit tax tax (expense tax
us$'00c Us$'00¢ US$'00(¢ us$'00c US$00(  US$'000
FVOCI reserve:
Net change in fair value 2,33 (356 1,97¢
Net amount reclassified to incor
statement (373, 61 (312
Available-for-sale reserve:
Net change in fair valt - - - (655, 83 (572
Net amount reclassified to incor
statement - - - 338 (41) 297
Other comprehensive income 1,95¢ (295 1,66¢ (317, 42 (275)

12.  FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY MEASU REMENT
CATEGORY

The following table analyses financial assets amancial liabilities as at 31 December 2018 presgnt
in the statement of financial position by HKFRSl&ssifications.

2018 Amortised
FVPL FVOCI cost Total

US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
Cash and shc-term deposit - - 538,48! 538,48!
Trading financial asse 96¢ - - 96¢
Loans and advances to customers - - 1,598,301 1,598,301
Investment securities - 1,315,30( - 1,315,300
Trade and other receivab - - 6,172 6,172
Total financial asse 96¢ 1,315,301 2,142,95! 3,459,222
Trading financial liabilities 3,164 3,164
Deposit: - - 3,029,99 3,029,99
Trade and other payab - - 112,91¢ 112,91¢
Total financialliabilities 3,164 - 3,142,911 3,146,07
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12. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY MEASU REMENT
CATEGORY (CONTINUED)

The following table analyses financial assets amalricial liabilities as at 31 December 2017 presgnt
in the statement of financial position by HKAS 38ssifications.

2017 Financial
liabilities
FVPL at
(held for Available Loansand  amortised
trading) -for-sale receivables cost Total
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
Cash anld shc-term ) i 188,267 ) 188,267
deposits
Trading financial asset: 2,813 } } i} 2,813
Loans and advances tc ) i 1,430,41¢ ) 1,430,416
customers
Investment securities - 2,410,435 - - 2,410,435
Trade gnd other ) i 18,781 ) 18,781
receivables
. . 2,813 2,410,435 1,637,46¢ - 4,050,712
Total financial assets
Trading financial 15,771 . . : 15,771
liabilities
Deposits - - - 3,686,32 3,686,32!
Trade and othe i i i 120,039 120,039
payables
Total financial 15,771 . - 3806365 3,822,136
liabilities
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13. TRADING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Trading assets and trading liabilities are sumnedress follows:

2018 2017
Notional Fair value Notional Fair value
amount Assets Liabilities amount Assets Liabilities

US$'000 US$000  US$'000 US$'000 US$000 US$'000

Derivatives
Foreign exchange contracts 696,57¢ 969 3,164 2,179,821 2,522 15,771
Interest rate contracts - - - 1,050,00( 291 -

696,57¢ 969 3,164 3,229,821 2,813 15,771

The derivatives are entered with other Morgan &a@roup undertakings (see note 32).

14. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

2018 2017
US$'000 US$'000
Loans and advances to customers at amortised cost 1,598,30: 1,430,416

There was no ECL impairment loss on loans and ambgto customers as at 31 December 2018 (2017:
Nil). Refer to note 24 for further information.

See note 3(f), for an explanation of ECL under HISFRand impairment under HKAS 39.
15. INVESTMENT SECURITIES

2018 2017
Us$'000 US$'000
Investment securities (FVOCI)
Government debt securities:
Singapore government treasury bills 270,923 -
US treasury bills and securities 1,044,37" -
Available-for-sale financial assets
Government debt securities:
Singapore government treasury bills - 1,287,352
US treasury bills and securities - 1,123,083
Total 1,315,30( 2,410,435
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16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2018 2017
US$'000 US$'000
Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables 1,735 15,314
Other receivables
Amounts due from other Morgan Stanley Group
undertakings 39 633
Interest receivable 4,362 2,743
Other amounts receivable 36 91
6,172 18,781
17. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
2018 2017
US$'000 US$'000
Trade and other payables
Trade payables 17,047 254
Other payables
Amounts due to other Morgan Stanley Group utadtergs 12,03¢ 13,520
Staff compensation and benefits accruals 74,577 81,502
Funds-in-transit - 20,000
Interest payable 5,589 1,160
Other amounts payable 3,667 3,603
112,91¢ 120,039
18. DEPOSITS
2018 2017
US$'000 US$'000
Deposits of banks
Current account balances 1,202 1,734
Deposits of non-bank customers
Current account balances 2,484 ,96¢ 2,644,840
Term deposits 543,82% 254,478
Deposits of other Morgan Stanley Group undertakings - 785,274
3,029,99: 3,686,326

19. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

Deferred taxes are calculated on all temporaredifices under the liability method. The moveme

the deferred tax account is as follows:

Deferred tax asset

2018 2017

US$'000 US$'000

At 1 January 6,452 5,406

Amount recognised in the income statement (2,109) 972
Amount recognised in other comprehensive income:

Financial assets measured at FVOCI (295) -

Available-for-sale financial assets - 42

Foreign exchange revaluation (25) 32

At 31 December 4,023 6,452
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19. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The deferred tax included in the statement of fom@rposition and changes recorded in ‘Income
tax’/'Other comprehensive income’ are as follows:

2018 2017

Deferred Other Deferred Other

Tax Income Comprehensive tax Income Comprehensive

Asset statement Income assel statement Income

US$'00C US$000 US$'00C US$'00C US$00C US$'00C

Deferred compensation 2,779 (2,109) - 6,355 1,585 -
Financial assets measured

FVOCI 1,244 - (295) - - -
Available-for-sale financial

assets - - - 97 - 42

Tax losses utilised - - - - (613) -

4,023 (2,109) (295) 6,452 972 42

The deferred tax assets recognised are based ocageraent assessment that it is probable that the
Company will have taxable profits against which tiporary differences can be utilised.

20. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

At 31 December 2018, there were no commitmentscantingencies (2017: Nil).

21. EQUITY

Ordinary share capital

Ordinary Ordinary
shares shares
Number US$'000

Issued and fully paid

At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017 and
31 December 2018 170,000,001 170,000

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled toivecdividends as declared from time to time and are
entitled to one vote per share at general meetihglse Company. All shares rank equally with regard
to the Company’s residual assets.

Reserves
FVOCI reserve
The ‘FVOCI reserve’ of US$968,000 (2017: US$niltlides the cumulative net change in the fair

value of FVOCI financial assets held at the repgriilate. The tax effect of these movements is also
included in the ‘FVOCI reserve'.

Available-for-sale reserve

The ‘Available-for-sale reserve’ of US$nil (2017S8696,000) includes the cumulative net change in
the fair value of available-for-sale financial asskeld at the reporting date. The tax effect esé
movements is also included in the ‘Available-fotesaserve’.
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22. ADDITIONAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION

a. Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flowsh emd cash equivalents comprise
balances, which have less than three months mafroin the date of acquisition:

Cash with central bank
Cash at banks
Placements with banks

the following

b. Reconciliation of cash flows from operating activies

Profit for the year
Adjustments for:
Net gains on derecognition of financialetssneasured ¢
FVOCI
Net income from other financial assets talthir value
Interest income
Interest expense
Income tax

Operating cash flows before changes in operatisgtasnd
liabilities

Changes in operating assets
Increase in loans and advances to customers
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables
Decrease in trading financial assets
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments

Changes in operating liabilities
Decrease in deposits
Decrease in trade and other payables
(Decrease)/increase in trading financedilities
Increas in accrual

Interest received

Interest paid

Net income tax paid

Effect of foreign exchange movements

Net cash flows used in operating activities

2018 2017
US$'000 US$'000
7,985 14,212
526,97¢ 162,968
3,522 11,087
538,48E 188,267
2018 2017
US$'000 US$'000
74,277 25,046
(373) -
- (136,283)
(75,752) (26,488)
23,517 33,570
13,342 4,315
35,00€ (99,840)
(167,885, (172,625)
14,22¢ (8,681)
1,844 32,234
91 (107)
(151,721 (149,179)
(651,434 (639,299)
(11,550) (6,362)
(12,607) 14,477
12t 31
(675,466, (631,153)
39,032 21,876
(23,988) (45,553)
(5,205) (350)
15,26C 8
(767,080 (904,191)
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23. EXPECTED MATURITY OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The table below shows an analysis of assets amdities analysed according to when they are
expected to be recovered, realised or settled.

At 31 December 2018

Less than More
or equal than
to twelve twelve
months months Total
US$'000 US$000 US$000
ASSETS
Cash and short-term deposits 538,48~ - 538,485
Trading financial assets 969 - 969
Loans and advances to customers 1,598,30: - 1,598,301
Investment securities 720,30¢ 594,99¢ 1,315,300
Trade and other receivables 6,172 - 6,172
Deferred tax assets - 4,023 4,023
Prepayments 124 - 124
2,864,35¢ 599,01¢ 3,463,374
LIABILITIES
Trading financial liabilities 3,164 - 3,164
Deposits 3,029,99: - 3,029,991
Trade and other payables 96,462 16,457 112,919
Current tax liabilities 7,662 - 7,662
Accruals 733 - 733
3,138,01: 16,457 3,154,469
At 31 December 2017 Less than
or equal More than
to twelve twelve
months months Total
US$'000 US$000 US$000
ASSETS
Cash and short-term deposits 188,267 - 188,267
Trading financial assets 2,813 - 2,813
Loans and advances to customers 1,430,41¢ - 1,430,416
Investment securities 2,410,43¢ - 2,410,435
Trade and other receivables 18,781 - 18,781
Deferred tax assets - 6,452 6,452
Prepayments 215 - 215
4,050,927 6,452 4,057,379
LIABILITIES
Trading financial liabilities 15,771 - 15,771
Deposits 3,686,32¢ - 3,686,326
Trade and other payables 94 ,45¢ 25,581 120,039
Current tax liabilities 1,667 - 1,667
Accruals 608 - 608

3,798,83( 25,581 3,824,411
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24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk management procedures

Risk is an inherent part of the Morgan Stanley @ewand the Company’'s business activities. The
Company seeks to identify, assess, monitor, andageeach of the various types of risk involved in
its business activities in accordance with defingalicies and procedures. The Company has
developed its own risk management policy framewuaitkich is consistent with and leverages the risk
management policies and procedures of the Morganl&t Group and which includes escalation to
appropriate senior management personnel of the @oynas well as oversight through the Company’s
Board of Directors (the “Board”) and through a dediéd Risk Committee that reports to the Board.

Significant risks faced by the Company resultingnirits private wealth management and financing
activities are set out below.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk of loss arising wteetborrower, counterparty or issuer does not mniset i

financial obligations to the Company. The Compamguis credit risk primarily from margin loans to

clients of the Wealth Management business segnaglt,to a lesser extent from Treasury activities
related to deposit placement, investment portfatid interest rate and foreign exchange hedges.

Credit risk management

Credit risk exposure is managed on a global basisim consideration of each significant legal gntit
within the Morgan Stanley Group. The credit riskmagement policies and procedures establish the
framework for identifying, measuring, monitoring darcontrolling credit risk whilst ensuring
transparency of material credit risks, compliancé&hwestablished limits and escalating risk
concentrations to appropriate senior managementrenBoard of Directors.

The Company incurs credit risk primarily in the Whavlanagement business through margin loans to
its clients. Margin loans are asset-based in rasecured by mostly cash and marketable securities
held with the Company as collateral.

The Company also incurs credit risk through a vargé treasury activities, including, but not limd
to, the following:

e entering into derivative contracts with other Mandatanley Group undertakings under which
counterparties may have obligations to make payserthe Company;

* posting margin and/or collateral to banks and ofimancial counterparties;
» placing funds on deposit at other financial insittos; and

e entering into securities transactions, wherebwtiae of these assets may fluctuate based on
realised or expected defaults on the underlyinggabibns.

Monitoring and Control

In order to help protect the Company from losses,Gredit Risk Management Department establishes
firm-wide practices to evaluate, monitor and cointredit risk at the transaction, obligor and politf
levels. The Credit Risk Management Department @my extensions of credit, evaluates the
creditworthiness of the Company’s counterparties laorrowers on a regular basis, and helps ensure
that credit exposure is actively monitored and mgada The evaluation of counterparties and
borrowers includes an assessment of the probalitiég an obligor will default on its financial
obligations and any subsequent losses that may edwen an obligor defaults. In addition, credskri
exposure is actively managed by credit profess@orahd committees within the Credit Risk
Management Department and through various risk citees, whose membership includes
individuals from the Credit Risk Management Depaitin
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Credit risk management (continued)
Monitoring and Control (continued)

A Credit Limits Framework is utilised to manage diteisk levels across the Company. The Credit
Limits Framework is calibrated within the Companyisk appetite and includes stress loss, product,
collateral concentration, correlated collaterahgk-name, regulatory and connected lending limits.
The Credit Risk Management Department helps ensorely and transparent communication of
material credit risks, compliance with establisHedits and escalation of risk concentrations to
appropriate senior management. The Credit Risk lgam&nt Department also works closely with the
Market Risk Department and applicable businesssunitmonitor risk exposures and to perform stress
tests to identify, analyse and control credit Gskicentrations arising from the Company’s lendind a
treasury activities. The stress tests shock maiabrs (e.g. interest rates, security pricesditre
spreads) and risk parameters (e.g. default prabesj| in order to assess the impact of stresses o
exposures, profit and loss, and the Company's algibsition. Stress tests are conducted in
accordance with established policies and procedufréddorgan Stanley Group and the Company and
comply with methodologies outlined in the Baselulagory framework.

Credit Evaluation

The evaluation of corporate and institutional ceuparties and borrowers includes assigning obligor
credit ratings, which reflect an assessment oftdigar's PD and LGD. An obligor credit rating cae b
categorised into Investment grade, Non-investmeatley and Default. Credit evaluations typically
involve the assessment of financial statementgrége, liquidity, capital strength, asset compositi
and quality, market capitalisation, access to ehpitarkets, the adequacy of collateral, if applieab
and in the case of certain loans, cash flow prmastand debt service requirements. The Credk Ris
Management Department also evaluates strategy,etpdsition, industry dynamics, management and
other factors that could affect the obligor's rigkofile. Additionally, the Credit Risk Management
Department evaluates the relative position of therddn Stanley Group’s exposure in the borrower’s
capital structure and relative recovery prospexssyell as adequacy of collateral (if applicable)l a
other structural elements of the particular tratisac

The Company’'s Wealth Management business segmeetraies minimal credit exposure given the
collateralised nature of the business, as suclertbdit evaluation focuses on the counterpartieds an
borrowers’ background and collateral evaluationgbtsure the exposures are well-collateralised and
credit risk is mitigated.

In addition to assessing and monitoring its credjtosure and risk at the individual obligor lexak
Company also reviews its credit exposure and dgjeiographic regions. As at 31 December 2018 and
31 December 2017, credit exposure was concentiatédbrth American and Asian countries. In
addition, the Company pays particular attentiosrt@ller exposures in emerging markets given their
unique risk profile. Sovereign ceiling ratings degived using methodologies generally consistettt wi
those employed by external rating agencies.

The Company also reviews its credit exposure asidto certain types of customers. At 31 December
2018 and 31 December 2017, the Company’s matemglitcexposure was to sovereigns, sovereign
related entities, corporate entities, financiatitnons and individuals.
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Credit risk management (continued)

Risk Mitigation

The Credit Risk Management Department may seekitigate credit risk from its lending and treasury
activities in multiple ways, including collateralqvisions and hedges.

In connection with the Company’s Wealth Managemminess, the Company relies on the use of
collateral to manage credit risk. The amount aipe tof collateral required by the Company depends
on an assessment of the credit risk of the obli@allateral held is managed in accordance with the
Company'’s guidelines and the relevant underlyinggagents. Collateral is primarily publicly traded
debt and equity securities, as well as a small amnotiother collateral including unlisted secustie
notes, mutual funds and insurance policies thdillfahe risk management requirement of being
valuable and realisable at short notice.

In connection with the Company's derivatives atidd with other Morgan Stanley Group
undertakings, the Company generally enters intdenatting agreements and collateral arrangements
with counterparties. These agreements provideCtmapany with the ability to demand collateral, as
well as to liquidate collateral and offset receteasband payables covered under the same master
agreement in the event of a counterparty default.

In connection with securities purchased under ageeds to resell transactions, the Company manages
credit exposure arising from such transactionsimygppropriate circumstances, entering into Global
Master Repurchase Agreements with counterpartias ghovide the Company, in the event of a
counterparty default, with the right to net a cauparty’s rights and obligations under such agregme
and liquidate and set off collateral held by themany against the net amount owed by the
counterparty. Under these securities purchasedruaglteements to resell transactions, the Company
receives collateral, including US government se@si The Company also monitors the fair value of
the underlying securities as compared with thetedlaeceivable or payable, including accrued irstere
and, as necessary, requests additional collatevalerisure such transactions are adequately
collateralised. As at 31 December 2018 and 31 Dbeerf017, there were no outstanding securities
purchased under agreements to resell transactions.

Exposure to credit risk

The maximum exposure to credit risk (“gross crediposure”) of the Company as at 31 December
2018 and 31 December 2017 is disclosed below, basete carrying amounts of the financial assets
the Company believes are subject to credit riskithW the table financial instruments subject to
accounting ECL are distinguished from those thatrast. Those financial instruments that bear credit
risk but are not subject to ECL are subsequentlgsueed at fair value. Where the Company enters into
credit enhancements, including receiving cash aedrity as collateral and master netting agreements
to manage the credit exposure on these financistiuments the financial effect of the credit
enhancements is also disclosed below. The netitceagposure represents the credit exposure
remaining after the effect of the credit enhancemsen

The Company does not have any significant exposwigng from items not recognised on the
statement of financial position.

Collateral and other credit enhancements

The Company employs a range of policies and pretic mitigate credit risk, the most common being
acceptance of collateral for funds advanced. Thie types of collateral held are cash and marketable
securities. The Company has internal policies @nabceptability of specific classes of collatenal o
credit risk mitigation.

The market value of securities received as cobéter monitored on a daily basis and securities
received as collateral generally are not recognisethe statement of financial position. The Conypan
monitors the creditworthiness of counterpartiesaorongoing basis and requests additional collateral
in accordance with collateral arrangements whemeeenecessary.
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Collateral and other credit enhancements (continued

At 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of finaheissets on which no ECL were recognised
because of collateral held was US$1,598,301,000.

The Company closely monitors collateral held foaficial assets considered to be credit-impaired, as
in such cases it is considered more likely that @@npany will take possession of collateral to
mitigate potential credit losses.

The Company does not hold financial assets coresidier be credit-impaired.

Exposure to credit risk by product

2018 Gross Net
credit Credit credit
exposuré? enhancements exposure
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
Subject to ECL:
Cash and shc-term deposit 538,48! - 538,48
Loans and advances to custort® 1,598,30. (1,598,301 -
Investment securities 1,315,300 - 1,315,300
Trade and other receivabi@s 6,172 - 6,172

Not subject to ECL®:
Trading financial assets
Derivatives 969 (969) -
3,459,227  (1,599,270) 1,859,957

Maximum exposure to credit risk for 2017 is preedras follows, reflecting the statement of finahcia
position categories used in 2017:

2017

Gross Net

credit Credit credit

exposuré’  enhancement: exposure

US$'000 US$'000 US$'000

Cash anshor-term deposit 188,26 - 188,26°
Trading financial assets 2,813 (243) 2,570
Loans and advances to custorfiérs 1,430,41¢ (1,430,416 -
Investment securities 2,410,43¢ - 2,410,435
Tradeand otherreceivable® 18,78 - 18,78
4,050,71: (1,430,659 2,620,05:

(1) The carrying amount recognised in the statemefibahcial position best represents the Companysman exposure to
credit risk.

(2) Trade and other receivables include cash collateledged against the payable on OTC derivativetiposi. These
derivative liabilities are included within tradifigancial liabilities in the statement of financ@sition.

(3) The collateral held as security for loan and adeanto customers consists of cash of US$379,894(Q0Q7:
US$358,105,000), securities of US$714,488,000 (2Q5%$647,222,000) and other collateral of US$508,800 (2017:
US$425,089,000).

(4) Financial assets measured at FVPL are not sulgjéeCt..
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Expected credit loss measurement

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

As explained in note 3(f), in order to assess wdredim instrument is subject to a 12 month ECL @& to
lifetime ECL, and therefore its appropriate stagitigg Company determines whether there has been a
SICR for the instrument since initial recognition.

When making this assessment, the Company considghsquantitative and qualitative information
and analysis based on the Company'’s historicalréexqee and expert credit risk assessment, including
forward-looking information.

The PD is derived from internal credit rating gradgased on available information about the
borrower) and multiple forward-looking macroecononsicenarios which are probability weighted.
Credit risk is considered to have increased sigaifily if the PD has significantly increased at the
reporting date relative to the PD of the faciliti, the date of initial recognition. The assessnuént
whether a change in PD is “significant” is basethban a consideration of the relative change in PD
and on qualitative indicators of the credit risk tbie facility, which indicate whether a loan is
performing or in difficulty. In addition, as a batkp, the Company considers that SICR has occurred
in all cases when an asset is more than 30 DPD.

Calculation of ECL
ECLs are calculated using three main components:

» PD: for accounting purposes, the 12 month anddifetPD represent the expected point-in-time
probability of a default over the next 12 monthd awver the remaining lifetime of the financial
instrument respectively, based on conditions exgstat the balance sheet date and future
economic conditions.

« LGD: the LGD represents expected loss conditional default, taking into account the
mitigating effect of collateral, including the exjped value of the collateral when realised and
the time value of money.

» EAD: this represents the expected EAD, taking iattcount the expected repayment of
principal and interest from the balance sheet dat¢he default event together with any
expected drawdowns of the facility over that period

These parameters are generally derived from inligroiveloped statistical models, incorporating
historical, current and forward-looking macro-econo data.

The 12 month ECL is equal to the sum over the fi@xnonths of quarterly PD multiplied by LGD and
EAD, with such expected losses being discountethetEIR. Lifetime ECL is calculated using the
discounted present value of total quarterly PDstiplidd by LGD and EAD, over the full remaining
life of the facility.

Incorporation of forward looking information

The Company uses internal macro-economic reseatit@untry risk expert judgement to support the
calculation of ECL. The macro-economic scenariesraviewed quarterly.

There have been no changes made to estimationigeelsnor significant assumptions for estimating
impairment, during the year.
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Exposure to credit risk by internal rating grades

Internal credit ratings are derived using methogdigs generally consistent with those used by eatern
agencies.

Recognised financial instruments subject to ECL

The following table provides an analysis of thedireaisk exposure by ECL stage per class of
recognised financial instrument subject to ECL golasn the following internal credit rating grades:

Investment grade: internal grades AAA - BBB
Non-investment grade: internal grades BB - CCC

Default: internal grades D

31 December 2018 ECL staging
Stage 1 Stage 2
12-month Lifetime
ECL ECL Total
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000

Cash and short-term

deposits:
Credit grade

Investment grade 538,48! - 538,485
Gross carrying amount and

carrying amount 538,485 - 538,485

Loans and advances to

customers":
Credit grade
Investment grade - 45,500 45,500
Non-investment grade - 1,530,209 1,530,209
Unrated - 22,59: 22,59:
Gross carrying amount and
carrying amount - 1,598,301 1,598,301
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Exposure to credit risk by internal rating grades gontinued)

31 December 2018 ECL staging
Stage 1 Stage 2
12-month Lifetime
ECL ECL Total
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000

Investment securities:
Credit grade

Investment grade 1,315,300 - 1,315,300
Gross carrying amount al

carrying amount 1,315,300 - 1,315,300

Trade and other

receivables:
Credit grade
Investment grade 1,677 80 1,757
Non-investment grade 79 4,240 4,319
Unrated 54 42 96
Gross carrying amount and
carrying amount 1,810 4,362 6,172

(1) There are no loans and advances to customers andothesponding interest receivable at stage 1. Jtmpany’s
accounting policy is to measure lifetime creditsies on loans and advances to customers and thesponding interest
receivable under the simplified approach.

Loss allowance

No loss allowance is recognised in the statemefiinahcial position as of the year end for finahcia
assets at amortised cost and investment secuaitif¢OCI as the carrying amount is at fair valuee(s
note 3(c)).
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Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Compamill be unable to finance its operations due tossl|

of access to the capital markets or difficulty iguidating its assets. Liquidity risk encompastes
Company’s ability (or perceived ability) to mees ifinancial obligations without experiencing
significant business disruption or reputational dgethat may threaten the Company’s viability as a
going concern. Liquidity risk also encompassesatbenciated funding risks triggered by the market o
idiosyncratic stress events that may cause unexgettanges in funding needs or an inability toerais
new funding. Generally, the Company incurs liqyidisk as a result of its trading, lending, invegt
and client facilitation activities.

The Morgan Stanley Group’s Liquidity Risk ManagemEramework is critical to helping ensure that
the Company maintains sufficient liquidity resenassd durable funding sources to meet its daily
obligations and to withstand unanticipated stregmes. The Liquidity Risk Department is a distinct
area in Risk Management, which oversees and manlitpridity risk. The Liquidity Risk Department
ensures transparency of material liquidity riskanpliance with established risk limits and escalati
of risk concentrations to appropriate senior mamegg. To execute these responsibilities, the
Liquidity Risk Department:

» Establishes limits in line with the Morgan Stan@soup’s risk appetite;
» Identifies and analyses emerging liquidity risketsure such risks are appropriately mitigated;
» Monitors and reports risk exposures against meatcklimits; and

* Reviews the methodologies and assumptions undenginthe Morgan Stanley Group’s
Liquidity Stress Tests to ensure sufficient ligtydinder a range of adverse scenarios.

The liquidity risks identified by these processes summarised in reports produced by the Liquidity
Risk Department that are circulated to and disaliggth the Company’s Asset & Liability Committee
(“ALCO”) and regional ALCO and risk committees, gpropriate.

The Treasury Department and applicable business twaive primary responsibility for evaluating,
monitoring and controlling the liquidity risks ang from the Morgan Stanley Group’s business
activities, and for maintaining processes and oimtto manage the key risks inherent in their
respective areas. The Liquidity Risk Departmentrdimates with the Treasury Department and these
business units to help ensure a consistent and rebmpsive framework for managing liquidity risk
across the Morgan Stanley Group.

The Company’s liquidity risk management policiesl gmocedures are consistent with those of the
Morgan Stanley Group. The Board of Directors of tBempany is ultimately responsible for
establishing the liquidity risk tolerance and emmsyirthe Company’s liquidity risk is appropriately
managed. In addition to the internal liquidity riskanagement framework, the Company is locally
subject to the liquidity regulations prescribedtbg HKMA. The Company has daily monitoring and
reporting processes in place to ensure compliatiiteits regulatory requirements.

The primary goal of the Company’s liquidity riskdafunding management framework is to ensure that
the Company has access to adequate funding acresdearange of market conditions and time
horizons. The framework is designed to enable tbenany to fulfil its financial obligations and
support the execution of its business strategies.

The following principles guide the Company’s ligiydrisk management framework:

» Sufficient liquid assets should be maintained teecanaturing liabilities and other planned and
contingent outflows;

» Maturity profile of assets and liabilities should bligned, with limited reliance on short-term
funding;

» Source, counterparty, currency, region, and terforfling should be diversified; and

» Liquidity Stress Tests should anticipate, and antéar, periods of limited access to funding.
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Liquidity risk (continued)

The core components of the Company’s liquidity rislanagement framework, are the Required
Liquidity Framework, Liquidity Stress Tests and thiguidity Reserve (as defined below), which
support its target liquidity profile.

Required Liquidity Framework

The Required Liquidity Framework establishes the@ant of liquidity the Company must hold in both
normal and stressed environments to ensure théin&acial condition and overall soundness is not
adversely affected by an inability (or perceivedhitity) to meet its financial obligations in a &y
manner. The Required Ligquidity Framework considées most constraining liquidity requirement to
satisfy all regulatory and internal limits at a Man Stanley Group and legal entity level.

Liquidity Stress Tests

The Company uses Liquidity Stress Tests to modtdreal and intercompany liquidity flows across

multiple scenarios and a range of time horizonses€hscenarios contain various combinations of
idiosyncratic and systemic stress events of differseverity and duration. The methodology,

implementation, production and analysis of the Canys Liquidity Stress Tests are important

components of the Required Liquidity Framework.

Liquidity Stress Tests are produced for the Compémyapture specific cash requirements and cash
availability. The Liquidity Stress Tests assume tn#gal entity will use its own liquidity firsbtfund

its obligations before drawing liquidity from itdtimate parent undertaking, Morgan Stanley. Morgan
Stanley will support its subsidiaries and will f@tve access to subsidiaries’ liquidity reserves déha
subject to any regulatory, legal or tax constraiftsaddition to the assumptions underpinning the
Liquidity Stress Tests, the Company takes into icmmation the settlement risk related to intra-day
settlement and clearing of securities and finaneictiyities.

At 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, the Coypeintained sufficient liquidity to meet
current and contingent funding obligations as mledeih its Liquidity Stress Tests.

Liquidity Reserve

The Company maintains sufficient liquidity reserv€tiquidity Reserve”) to meet regulatory
requirements, cover daily funding needs and to mseategic liquidity targets sized by the Required
Liquidity Framework and Liquidity Stress Tests. Tiee of the Liquidity Reserve is actively managed
by the Company considering the following componeutsecured debt maturity profile; balance sheet
size and composition; funding needs in a stressedta@ment inclusive of contingent cash outflows;
regulatory requirements; and collateral requiremeht addition, the Company’s Liquidity Reserve
includes a discretionary surplus based on the Cogiparisk tolerance and is subject to change
depending on market and firm-specific events.

The Company holds its own Liquidity Reserve whichcomposed of diversified cash and cash
equivalents and unencumbered highly liquid se@siti
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Liquidity risk (continued)

Eligible unencumbered highly liquid securities imb¢ primarily non-US government securities in
addition to US government securities.

Funding Management

The Company manages its funding in a manner thhtces the risk of disruption to the Company’s
operations. The Company pursues a strategy of gifieation of secured and unsecured funding
sources (by product, investor and region) and giteno ensure that the tenor of its liabilities &gLor
exceeds the expected holding period of the ass#tg financed.

The Company funds itself through diverse sourcé®s€ sources may include the Company’'s equity
capital, borrowings and deposits.

Balance sheet management

In managing both the Morgan Stanley Group’s andQbenpany’s liquidity risk the composition and
size of the entire balance sheet, not just findr@hilities, is monitored and evaluated. A sulosial
portion of the Morgan Stanley Group’s total assetssists of liquid marketable securities and short-
term receivables arising principally from sales dratling activities in the Institutional Securities
business. The liquid nature of these assets previte Morgan Stanley Group and the Company with
flexibility in managing the composition and sizeitsfbalance sheet.

Maturity analysis

In the following maturity analysis of financial &s and financial liabilities, derivatives contmsact
measured at fair value are presented at fair vatoasistent with how these financial assets and
liabilities are managed, and disclosed as on demarivestment securities measured at fair value
which are not held as part of the Company’s tradiotivities are disclosed according to their eatlie
contractual maturity; all such amounts are preskemtetheir fair value, consistent with how these
financial assets are managed. All other amountsesept undiscounted cash flows receivable and
payable by the Company arising from its financegets and financial liabilities to earliest contuat
maturities as at 31 December 2018 and 31 Decembi&r.2 Receipts of financial assets and
repayments of financial liabilities that are subjez immediate notice are treated as if notice were
given immediately and are classified as on demahib presentation is considered by the Company to
appropriately reflect the liquidity risk arisingoin those financial assets and financial liabilities
presented in a way that is consistent with howlidngdity risk on these financial assets and finahc
liabilities is managed by the Company.
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Liquidity risk (continued)
Maturity analysis (continued)

31 December 2018

Financial liabilities

Deposits of banks
Deposits of non-bank customers
Trading financial liabilities:
Derivatives
Trade and other payables
Total financial liabilities

31 December 2017

Financial liabilities

Deposits of banks
Deposits of non-bank customers
Trading financial liabilities:
Derivatives
Trade and other payables
Total financial liabilities

More than More than More than
1 month 3 months 1yeal
Not but not but not but not
more more more more
On than than than than
demanc 1 month 3 months lyeal 5 years Total
US$'00C US$'00( US$'00C  US$00C us$'00¢ Us$'00C
1,202 - - - - 1,202
2,484,966 127,451 142,990 278,049 - 3,033,456
- 1,556 1,608 - - 3,164
30,382 23,009 35,398 7,673 16,457 112,919
2,516,550 152,016 179,996 285,722 16,457 3,150,741
More than More than  More than
1 month 3 months 1year
Not but not but not but not
On more than more than more than more than
demand 1 month 3 months 1 year 5 years Total
US$'00C US$'00C US$00C  US$00C USs$'00( us$'00(
1,734 - - - - 1,734
2,644,840 79,651 90,976 886,121 - 3,701,588
- 4,224 7,576 3,971 - 15,771
14,028 45,640 31,109 3,681 25,581 120,039
2,660,602 129,515 129,661 893,773 25,581 3,839,132
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Market Risk

Market risk is defined by HKFRS Financial Instruments: Disclosureas the risk that the fair value
or future cash flows of a financial instrument Vlilictuate because of changes in market prices.

The Company manages the market risk associateditwidssets and liabilities management activities
at both division and an individual product leveidancludes consideration of market risk at thealeg
entity level.

Sound market risk management is an integral parthef Company’s culture. The Company is

responsible for ensuring that market risk exposareswell-managed and monitored. The Company
also ensures transparency of material market risisitors compliance with established limits, and

escalates risk concentrations to appropriate s@emégragement.

To execute these responsibilities, the Morgan 8ta@roup monitors the market risk of the firm

against limits on aggregate risk exposures, pedoanvariety of risk analyses including monitoring

Value-at-risk (“VaR") and stress testing analysesitinely reports risk summaries and maintains the
VaR and scenario analysis methodologies. The Comparmmanaged within the Morgan Stanley

Group’s global framework. The market risk managetmaolicies and procedures of the Company
include performing risk analyses and reporting malerisks identified to appropriate senior

management of the Company.

The Company is exposed to the following types ofkarisk under this definition: interest rate risk
and currency risk.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is defined by HKFRS 7 as thk tiigt the fair value or future cash flows of aaficial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in kafiinterest rates. The Company is primarily
exposed to interest rate risk under this definitaana result of changes in the future cash flows of
deposits and loans, bank balance, changes initheafae of fixed rate debt investments categorised
FVOCI, and the interest rate swap hedges.

The application of a parallel shift in market irgst rates of 50 basis points increase or decrease t
these positions, would result in a net gain or lafs approximately US$2,487,000 (2017:
US$3,093,000).
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Market Risk (continued)
Currency risk

The Company has foreign currency exposure arigioig fits assets and liabilities in currencies other
than US dollars, which it actively manages by hadguith other Morgan Stanley Group undertakings.

The analysis below details the material foreignrenecy exposure for the Company, by foreign
currency. The analysis calculates the impact cal tamprehensive income of a reasonably possible
parallel shift of the foreign currency in relatitmthe US dollar, with all other variables held stamt.

2018 2017
Sensitivity to applied Sensitivity to applied
percentage change in percentage change in
currency (+/-) currency (+/-)
Foreign Percentage Other Foreign Percentage Other
currency changeProfit or comprehensive currency changeProfitor comprehensive
exposure  applied loss income exposure  applied loss income
US$'000 % US$'000 US$'000  US$'000 % US$'000 US$'000
Hong Kong Dollar (10,557, 1 106 - (7,344) 1 73 -
Singapore Dollar (2,268) 8 181 - (1,702) 8 101 35
Yuan Renminbi 221 6 13 - 274 6 16
(13,046, (9,320)

The reasonably possible percentage change in thiency rate in relation to US dollars has been
calculated based on the greatest annual perceokegee over the 2-year period from 1 January 2017
to 31 December 2018 (2017: from 1 January 2016.tBb&ember 2017 hus, the percentage change
applied may not be the same percentage as thd abfarzge in the currency rate for the year ended 31
December 2018, or for the year ended 31 Decemliet.20
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Operational risk refers to the risk of loss, ordaimage to the Company’s reputation, resulting from
inadequate or failed processes, people and sysieifnem external events (e.g. fraud, theft, legad a
compliance risks, cyber attacks or damage to phlysissets). Operational risk relates to the folhmvi
risk event categories as defined by Basel Captaidards: internal fraud; external fraud; employtnen
practices and workplace safety; clients, productslzusiness practices; business disruption anérsyst
failure; damage to physical assets; and executi@liery and process management.

The Company may incur operational risk across thikestope of its business activities, including
revenue-generating activities (e.g. private weaiinagement) and support and control groups (e.g.,
information technology and trade processing).

The Company has established an operational riskeweork to identify, measure, monitor and control
risk across the Company. This framework is conststgth the framework established by the Morgan
Stanley Group and includes escalation to the CogipaBoard of Directors and appropriate senior
management personnel. Effective operational riskagament is essential to reducing the impact of
operational risk incidents and mitigating legal anegutational risks. The framework is continually
evolving to account for changes in the Company tmdespond to the changing regulatory and
business environment. The Company has implememgechtional risk data and assessment systems to
monitor and analyse internal and external operatiosk events, to assess business environment and
internal control factors and to perform scenarialgsis. The collected data elements are incorpdrate
in the operational risk capital model. The modet@npasses both quantitative and qualitative
elements. Internal loss data and scenario analgsidts are direct inputs to the capital model,lgvhi
external operational incidents, business enviroriraed internal control factors are evaluated a$ par
of the scenario analysis process.

In addition, the Company employs a variety of fskcesses and mitigants to manage its operational
risk exposures. These include a strong governaramaefvork, a comprehensive risk management
programme and insurance. Operational risks andceded risk exposures are assessed relative to the
risk tolerance reviewed and confirmed by the Baamnd are prioritised accordingly. The breadth and
range of operational risk are such that the tygesitigating activities are wide-ranging. Examplefs
activities include enhancement of defences agayistr attacks; use of legal agreements and costract
to transfer and/or limit operational risk exposumse diligence; implementation of enhanced pdiicie
and procedures; exception management processiti@tsprand segregation of duties.

Primary responsibility for the management of ogerstl risk is with the business, the control groups
and the business managers therein. The businesggergrmaintain processes and controls designed to
identify, assess, manage, mitigate and report tipae risk. Each of the business segments has a
designated operational risk coordinator. The opmmat risk coordinator regularly reviews operatibna
risk issues and reports to the Company’s senioragement within each business. Each control group
also has a designated operational risk coordireatdra forum for discussing operational risk matters
with the Company’s senior management. Oversighipafrational risk is provided by the Operational
Risk Oversight Committee, regional risk committeesl senior management. In the event of a merger;
joint venture; divestiture; reorganisation; or ¢iea of a new legal entity, a new product or a hass
activity, operational risks are considered, and aegessary changes in processes or controls are
implemented.
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25. OPERATIONAL RISK (CONTINUED)

The Operational Risk Department provides oversigiit operational risk management and
independently assesses measures and monitors iopatatsk. The Operational Risk Department
works with the business divisions and control gowp help ensure a transparent, consistent and
comprehensive framework for managing operatiorsl viithin each area and across the Company.
The Operational Risk Department scope includes siyler of the technology and data risk
management programme (e.g., cybersecurity), frslkdmanagement and prevention programme and a
supplier management (vendor risk oversight andsassent) programme. Furthermore, the Operational
Risk Department supports the collection and repgrtif operational risk incidents and the executbn
operational risk assessments; provides the infretsire needed for risk measurement and risk
management; and ensures ongoing validation andficaidon of the Company’s advanced
measurement approach for operational risk capital.

Business Continuity Management is responsibledeniifying key risks and threats to the Company’s
resiliency and planning to ensure that a recovagtegy and required resources are in place for the
resumption of critical business functions followingdisaster or other business interruption. Disaste
recovery plans are in place for critical facilitiesd resources, and redundancies are built into the
systems as deemed appropriate. The key compondnthieo Company's Business Continuity
Management Programme include: crisis managemergindss recovery plans; applications/data
recovery; work area recovery; and other elementiremging management, analysis, training and
testing.

The Company maintains a programme that overseesyfisr and information security risks. The
Company'’s cybersecurity and information securitjigies, procedures and technologies are designed
to protect the Company’s client and employee dgeinst unauthorised disclosure, modification or
misuse and are also designed to address regutaipuirements. These policies and procedures cover a
broad range of areas, including: identificationimternal and external threats, access control, data
security, protective controls, detection of maligoor unauthorised activity, incident response and
recovery planning.

In connection with its ongoing operations, the Camputilises the services of external vendors, tvhic
it anticipates will continue and may increase ie fluture. These services include, for example,
outsourced processing and support functions anduttimg and other professional services. The
Company manages its exposures to these serviaaggthia variety of means such as the performance
of due diligence, consideration of operational riskoplementation of service level and other
contractual agreements, and ongoing monitoringy@fvendors’ performance. The Company maintains
a supplier risk management programme with policiggicedures, organisation, governance and
supporting technology that aligns with the risketahce and is designed to meet regulatory
requirements. The programme includes the adopfiapjaropriate risk management controls including,
but not limited to information security, operatiovfailure, financial stability, disaster recoverityi
reputational risk, safeguards against corruptiahtarmination.
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In order to manage credit exposure arising frombiisiness activities, the Company applies various
credit risk management policies and proceduresnste24 for further details. Primarily in connecti
with derivative transactionsthe Company enters into master netting arrangemamds collateral
arrangements with its counterparties. These agresnmrovide the Company with the right, in the
ordinary course of business and/or in the evena abunterparty default (such as bankruptcy or a
counterparty’s failure to pay or perform), to net@unterparty’s rights and obligations under such
agreement and, in the event of counterparty defaettoff collateral held by the Company against th
net amount owed by the counterparty. Howevergitain circumstances, the Company may not have
such an agreement in place; the relevant insolveegiyne (which is based on type of counterparty
entity and the jurisdiction of organisation of twunterparty) may not support the enforceabilityhef
agreement; or the Company may not have sought &fyace to support the enforceability of the
agreement. In cases where the Company has natrde¢el an agreement to be enforceable, the
related amounts are not offset.

The Company’s policy is generally to receive casll earketable securities posted as collateral. In
certain cases the Company may be permitted to quiistteral to a third party custodian under a tri-

party arrangement that enables the Company to ¢akérol of such collateral in the event of a

counterparty default.

In the statement of financial position, financiasats and financial liabilities are only offset and
presented on a net basis where there is a curgatly enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounts and an intention to either settle on abasis or to realise the assets and the liabilities
simultaneously. In the absence of such conditifinancial assets and financial liabilities are prasd

on a gross basis.

The following tables present information about tfésetting of financial instruments and related
collateral amounts. The tables do not include mimtion about financial instruments that are subject
only to a collateral agreement. The effect of nrasttting arrangements, collateral agreements and
other credit enhancements, on the Company’s expdsworedit risk is disclosed in note 24.
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26. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES SUBJECT TO OFFSETTING

(CONTINUED)

31 December 2018

Assets

Trading financial asse
Derivative:

TOTAL

Liabilities

Trading financial liabilities:

Derivatives
TOTAL
31 December 2017
Assets

Trading financial assets:
Derivatives

TOTAL

Liabilities

Trading financial liabilities:

Derivatives
TOTAL

Amounts Net amounts
offset inthe presented in
statement ol the statement

Amounts not offse in
the statement of
financial position®™®

Gross financial of financial Financial Cash Net
amounts position position instruments collateral exposure
US$’000 US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000

96¢ - 96¢ (969 - -
969 - 969 (969) - -

3,164 - 3,164 (969) (1,734) 461

3,164 - 3,164 (969) (1,734) 461

2,813 - 2,813 (2,522) (243) 48

2,813 - 2,813 (2,522) (243) 48

15,771 - 15,771 (2,522) (13,249 -

15,771 - 15,771 (2,522) (13,249 -

(1) Amounts relate to master netting arrangemants collateral arrangements which have been detedrby the
Company to be legally enforceable, but do not raletriteria required for net presentation withiretstatement of

financial position.

(2) The cash collateral is recognised in théestant of financial position within ‘Trade and atheceivables’ and
‘Trade and other payables’ respectively.
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27. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE
a. Financial assets and liabilities recognised aaif value on a recurring basis

The following tables present the carrying valuetilodd Company's financial assets and financial
liabilities recognised at fair value on a recurrivasis, classified according to the fair value dnieiny.

2018 Valuation
Valuation techniques
Quoted techniques with
prices in using significant
active observable unobservable
market inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

US$'000 US$'000 US$'000  US$'000

Trading financial assets:
- Derivatives
Foreign exchange contracts - 969 - 969

Investment securities:
- Government debt securities 1,044,37: 270,92¢ - 1,315,300

Total financial assets measured at fair valu¢  1,044,37 271,892 - 1,316,269

Trading financial liabilities:

- Derivatives
Foreign exchange contracts - 3,164 - 3,164
Total financial liabilities measured at fair
value - 3,164 - 3,164
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27. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE (CONT INUED)

a. Financial assets and liabilities recognised a&if value on a recurring basis (continued)

2017 Valuation
Valuation techniques
Quoted techniques with
prices in using significant
active observable unobservable
market inputs inputs

(Level 1)  (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000

Trading financial assets:

- Derivatives
Foreign exchange contra/

interest rate contracts - 2,813 - 2,813
Investment securities:

- Government debt securities 1,123,08: 1,287,35: - 2,410,435
Total financial assets measured at fair valur ~ 1,123,08: 1,290,16°¢ - 2,413,248
Trading financial liabilities:

- Derivatives

Foreign exchange contracts - 15,771 - 15,771
Total financial liabilities measured at fair
value - 15,771 - 15,771

The Company’s valuation approach and fair valuganihy categorisation for certain significant
classes of financial instruments recognised atvime on a recurring basis is as follows:

Asset and Liability / Valuation Technique Valuation Hierarchy Classification

Government debt securities

US treasury securities

« Fair value is determined using quoted market price * Generally Level 1
Non US Government Obligations ¢ Generally Level 1
 Fair value is determined using quoted prices tivaenarkets when « Level 2 - if the market is less active or
available. prices are dispersed

« Level 3 - in instances where the prices
are unobservable

Derivatives

OTC derivative contracts (include swap contraciatedl to interest rates and « Generally Level 2 - OTC derivative

foreign currencies) products valued using observable
» Depending on the product and the terms of the actim, the fair value inputs, or where the unobservable input
of OTC derivative products can be modeled usingries of techniques, is not deemed significant
including closed-form analytic formulas, such as Black-Scholes ¢ Level 3 - OTC derivative products for
option-pricing model, simulation models or a conattion thereof. Many which the unobservable input is deemed
pricing models do not entail material subjectiag/the methodologies significant

employed do not necessitate significant judgensnte model inputs
may be observed from actively quoted markets, #eigase for generic
interest rate swaps. In the case of more establidbgvative products,
the pricing models used by the Company are widetgpted by the
financial services industry.
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27. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE (CONT INUED)

b. Transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 of the fairalue hierarchy for financial assets and
liabilities recognised at fair value on a recurringbasis

There were no transfers between Level 1 and LewéltRe fair value hierarchy during the currentryea
and prior year.

C. Changes in Level 3 financial assets and liabilitiesecognised at fair value on a recurring
basis

There were no transfers between Level 2 and LewéltBe fair value hierarchy during the currentryea
and prior year.

d. Assets and liabilities measured at fair value oa non-recurring basis

Non-recurring fair value measurements of asselimbitities are those which are required or pereutt
in the statement of financial position in particutdarcumstances. There were no assets or lialsilitie
measured at fair value on a non-recurring basisguhe current year and prior year.

28. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES NOT MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE

For all financial instruments not measured at failue, the carrying amount is considered to be a
reasonable approximation of fair value due to thersterm nature of these assets and liabilities.

29. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Morgan Stanley Group manages its capital orloBay basis with consideration for its legal
entities. The capital managed by the Morgan Sta@eyup broadly includes ordinary share capital,
preference share capital, subordinated loans ailwes.

The Morgan Stanley Group actively manages its dafeted capital position based upon, among other
things, business opportunities, risks, capital labéity and rates of return together with intercabital
policies, regulatory requirements and rating agenggelines and, therefore, in the future may expan
or contract its capital base to address the chgnggeds of its businesses.

The Morgan Stanley Group also aims to adequateqiifalse at a legal entity level whilst safeguagdin
that entity’s ability to continue as a going comcemnd ensuring that it meets all regulatory capital
requirements, so that it can continue to providerre for the Morgan Stanley Group.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital struetas described above, the Company may adjust the
amount of dividends paid, return capital to shalddm issue new shares, issue subordinated debt or
sell assets to reduce debt.
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29. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

The Company is regulated by the HKMA and as suduigect to minimum capital requirements. The
Company’s capital is monitored on an ongoing basisnsure compliance with these requirements. At
a minimum, the Company must ensure that capitgrésater than the capital requirement covering
credit, market and operational risk.

The Company complied with all of its regulatory italrequirements during the current and prior year

The Company manages the following items as capital:

2018 2017

US$'000 US$'000

Ordinary share capital 170,00C 170,000
FVOCI reservi 968 -
Available-for-sale reserve - (696)
Retained earniny 137,937 63,664

308,90¢ 232,968

The Company has earmarked part of its retainedireggrfor maintaining its regulatory reserve for
general banking risks to satisfy the provisionstte Banking Ordinance for prudential supervision
purposes. At 31 December 2018, US$17,581,000 (208%7,152,000) in the retained earnings was
earmarked for this purpose.

30. EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION PLANS

Morgan Stanley maintains various equity-settledresfersed and cash-based deferred compensation
plans for the benefit of certain current and formeployees.

Equity-settled share-based compensation plans
* Restricted stock units

Morgan Stanley has granted RSU awards pursuantveral equity-based compensation plans. The
plans provide for the deferral of a portion of eértemployees’ incentive compensation with awards
made in the form of restricted common stock orhia tight to receive unrestricted shares of common
stock in the future. Awards under these plans areglly subject to vesting over time, generalhgéh
years from the date of award, and are generallyirmgent upon continued employment and subject to
restrictions on sale, transfer or assignment watiiversion to a common stock. All or a portion of a
award may be cancelled if employment is termin&teidre the end of the relevant vesting period and
after the vesting period in certain situations. iBieats of RSU awards may have voting rights, at th
Morgan Stanley Group’s discretion, and generalbgiee dividend equivalents, if the awards vest.

During the year, Morgan Stanley granted 323,65%sU2017: 288,821 units) of RSUs to employees of
the Company with a weighted average fair valueypdtr of US$56.13 (2017: US$42.71), based on the
market value of Morgan Stanley shares at grant date

Included within ‘Staff costs’, ‘Directors’ remunéian’ and ‘Management charges from other Morgan
Stanley Group undertakings’ within the ‘Other expe' note is an amount of US$15,521,000 (2017:
US$13,197,000) in relation to RSUs equity based paomation plans, granted to employees of the
Company.
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30. EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION PLANS (CONTINUED)
Deferred cash-based compensation plans

Morgan Stanley has granted deferred cash-based eswapon awards to certain employees which
defer a portion of the employees’ discretionary pensation. The plans generally provide a return
based upon the performance of various referencegsiments. Awards under these plans are generally
subject to a sole vesting condition of service dirae, which normally ranges from six months taethr
years from the date of grant. All or a portion ofaward may be cancelled if employment is termuhate
before the end of the relevant vesting period. dlards are settled in cash at the end of the nefeva
vesting period.

Awards with a value of US$17,076,000 (2017: US$Q2,800) have been granted to employees of the
Company during the year. The liability to employe¢she end of the year, reported within ‘Trade and
other payables’ in the statement of financial positis US$21,826,000 (2017: US$20,451,000).

Plans operated by fellow Morgan Stanley undertaking

As explained in note 10, the Company utilises #wises of staff who are employed by other Morgan
Stanley Group entities. Management charges arergatin respect of these employee services which
include the cost of equity-settled share-based ewmsgtion plans and deferred cash-based
compensation plans.

31. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
Defined contribution plans

The Morgan Stanley Group operates the Morgan StabDkfined Contribution Plan (the “Plan”),
which requires contributions to be made to fundfd He trust, separate from the assets of the
Company. The Plan is a defined contribution plan.

Additionally, the employees of the Branch are mersloé a state-managed retirement benefit plan, the
Central Provident Board Fund, operated by the Gowent of Singapore. The Branch is required to
contribute a specified percentage of payroll costihie retirement benefit scheme to fund the bé&efi
The only obligation of the Branch with respect te tretirement plan is to make the specified
contributions.

The defined contribution pension charge recognigitin ‘Staff costs’ and ‘Directors’ remuneration’
in ‘Other expense’ in the income statement was UBERI000 for the year (2017: US$4,628,000) of
which US$218,000 was accrued at 31 December 20187(2)S$193,000).

32. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
Parent and subsidiary relationships
Parent and ultimate controlling entity

The Company’'s immediate parent undertaking is Mer@anley Hong Kong Limited, which is
incorporated in Hong Kong.

The ultimate parent undertaking and controllingtgrand the largest group of which the Company is a
member and for which group financial statementspaepared is Morgan Stanley. Morgan Stanley is
incorporated in the State of Delaware, the UnitedeS of America. Copies of its financial statersent
can be obtained fromww.morganstanley.com/investorrelations
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32. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)
Key management compensation

Key management personnel are defined as those ngefsaving authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the activitiesthe Company. Key management personnel include
the Board of Directors of the Company.

Compensation paid to key management personneleinvbrgan Stanley Group in respect of their
services rendered to the Company, comprised thafiolg:

2018 2017

US$'000 US$'000

Short-term employee benefits 5,845 4,385
Post-employment benefits 93 76
Share-based payments 799 5,709
Other long-term employee benefits 2,871 3,089
9,608 13,259

The share-based payment costs disclosed abovetréftieamortisation of equity-based awards granted
to key management personnel over the last threes yeal are therefore not directly aligned with othe
staff costs in the current year.

Key management personnel compensation is bornedrgdth Stanley Group undertakings in both the
current and prior years. Management rechargesnffj) in respect of key management personnel
compensation borne by other Morgan Stanley Grougeriakings are included in ‘Management

charges from other Morgan Stanley Group undertakiegating to staff costs’ within ‘Other expense’,

as disclosed in note 10.

In addition to the above, directors not in the MworgStanley Group provided key management
personnel services to the Company for which a fed2%$134,000 was charged for the year (2017:
US$82,000) and of which nil was accrued at 31 Ddxr2018 (2017: nil).

Transactions with related parties

The Morgan Stanley Group conducts business fomtdiglobally through a combination of both
functional and legal entity organisational struetir Accordingly, the Company is closely integrated
with the operations of the Morgan Stanley Group a@ntkrs into transactions with other Morgan
Stanley Group undertakings on an arm’s length Hasithe purposes of utilising financing, tradingda
risk management, and infrastructure services. rttere of these relationships along with informatio
about the transactions and outstanding balancgises below. Settlement of the outstanding balances
will be made in cash. The Company has not recodrisgy expense and has made no provision for
impairment relating to the amount of outstandinabees from related parties (2017: Nil).
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32. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)
Transactions with related parties (continued)
Cash

The Company receives deposits from other Morganl&jaGroup undertakings. All such transactions
are entered into on an arm’s length basis.
2018 2017
Interest Balance Interest Balance
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000

Amounts due to the Company’s direct

and indirect parent undertakings 7,193 - 10,49C 473,139

Amounts due tother Morgan Stanle
Group undertakings 5,921 - 16,332 312,135
13,114 - 26,822 785,274

Trading and risk management

The Company enters into purchases and sales ofitseswand derivative transactions with other
Morgan Stanley Group undertakings primarily to meeal regulatory requirements and to manage the
market risks associated with such transactions.dmapany also has a cash sweep service with other
Morgan Stanley Group undertakings to facilitatevsion of financial services to clients on a global
basis. All such transactions are entered into oararis length basis. The total amounts receivabtt a
payable on such securities transactions not ydedednd the fair value of such derivatives corirac
outstanding at the year end were as follows:

2018 2017
US$'000 US$'000

Amounts due from other Morgan Stanley Group un#ergs 969 4,833

Amounts due to other Morgan Stanley Group undentgki 20,20¢ 15,778

The Company has received collateral of US$Nil (200B$243,000) at 31 December 2018 and
incurred interest charges of US$111,000 (2017: UEHXJ to other Morgan Stanley Group
undertakings during the year and has pledged ecdlbof US$1,734,000 (2017: US$13,295,000) at 31
December 2018 and received interest of US$90,0007(2US$118,000) from other Morgan Stanley
Group undertakings during the year to mitigate itreidk on exposures arising under derivatives
contracts between the Company and other Morgane§t&@roup undertakings. This is reported in the
statement of financial position in ‘Trade and ottezeivables’/ ‘Trade and other payables’.
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32. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)
Transactions with related parties (continued)
Infrastructure services and fees and commissions

The Company receives and incurs management chaogaad from other Morgan Stanley Group
undertakings for infrastructure services, includihg provision of staff, administrative support and
office facilities. Management recharges received iacurred during the year are as follows:

2018 2017
US$'000 US$'000

Amounts recharged frothe Company’s direct and indirect par
undertakings 144 168

Amounts recharged from other Morgan Stanley Group

undertakings 69,35E 56,970
69,49¢ 57,138
Amounts recharged to other Morgan Stanley Grougeriaings 6,420 1,889

The management and execution of business strategiaglobal basis results in many Morgan Stanley
transactions impacting a number of Morgan Stanlequ@ undertakings. The Morgan Stanley Group
operates a number of intra-group policies to enthag where possible, revenues and related costs a
matched.

The Company earns fee and commission income frdrardtlorgan Stanley Group undertakings for
value added services which include sales commissionl fees arising from such policies. Fees and
commissions received during the year are as fotlows

2018 2017
US$'000 US$'000

Fees and commissions received frthe Company’s direct an
indirect parent undertakings 228,40¢ 210,552
228,40¢ 210,552
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32. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)
Transactions with related parties (continued)
Infrastructure services and fees and commissioostifcued)

Amounts arising from infrastructure services and #d commission income outstanding at the
reporting date are as follows:

2018 2017
US$'000 US$'000

Amounts due from the Company’s direct and indipsoient

undertakings 5 29
Amounts due from other Morgan Stanley Group undéertes 34 604
39 633

2018 2017

US$'000 US$'000

Amounts due to the Company'’s direct and indireceptundertakings 3,777 6,925
Amounts due to other Morgan Stanley Group undengki 8,262 6,595
12,03¢ 13,520

These balances are undated, unsecured and noesirbearing.

33. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 5 March 2019, the sale of all of the Companytirary shares from MSHKL to MSHK1238 was
completed at a consideration of US$314,896,673.

On 22 March 2019, 500,000,000 ordinary shares vigseed by the Company to MSHK1238 for a
cash consideration of US$500,000,000.
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The following information is disclosed as part ¢fetaccompanying information to the financial
statements to comply with the Banking (DisclosuRe)les and does not form part of the audited
financial statements.

A. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance Practices

The Company and Morgan Stanley are committed tooldpbg high standards in its corporate
governance practices. The HKMA has issued statigoidelines on Corporate Governance of Locally
Incorporated Authorised Institutions (“CG-1") undsction 7(3) of the Banking Ordinance applicable
to all locally incorporated Authorised Institutiof$Als”). The Company has in place an effective
framework which is consistent with the principlegldest practices in corporate governance as ”ht fo
in the guidelines on CG-1.

Board of Directors

The Board of the Company currently comprises o nimembers: two Executive Directors, four Non-
Executive Directors, and three Independent Non-Htee Directors. All Directors have the
appropriate experience, competence, personal arafessional integrity to discharge their
responsibilities effectively. The Directors havefigient independence, expertise and experience to
oversee the Company’s operations and manage figksgriately.

Board Practices

Board meetings are held at least four times a ye#h, one in each quarter. Notice of each Board
meeting is given to all Directors in advance anel digenda is sent to the Directors before the date o
each Board meeting. Minutes of each Board meetiagcirculated to all Directors for their comments
prior to confirmation of the minutes at the followi Board meeting. Minutes of Board meetings are
kept by the Company Secretary and are availablm$pection by the Directors.

There are four Board level committees: (a) BoarddiflCommittee (formerly known as “Audit

Committee”), (b) Board Remuneration and Culturejuga and Conduct Committee (formerly known
as “Remuneration Committee”), (c) Board Risk Contedt(formerly known as “Risk Committee”);

and (d) Board Nomination Committee.

In addition, there are two Management level coneait (a) Management Committee; and (b) Bank
Risk Committee, which are in turn supported by mber of management sub-committees.

Key Board Level Committees

(a) Board Audit Committee
Three Board members sit on the Board Audit commiitteluding two Independent Non-Executive
Directors and one Non-Executive Director. The Bloaudit Committee is chaired by an
Independent Non-Executive Director and expects ¢etrat least 4 times a year. The Board Audit
Committee’s mandate is to ensure that there i@t supervision of the Company’s financial
reporting processes, systems of internal controls iaternal audit function. The Board Audit
Committee also will review and endorse the recondaéian on the appointment or re-appointment
of external auditors and reviews the financialestants before recommending them to the Board
for approval.
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A.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)

Key Board Level Committees (continued)

(b)

(©

(d)

Board Remuneration and Culture, Values and Condaaoimittee

Three Board members sit on the Board RemuneratidrCailture, Values and Conduct Committee
including two Independent Non-Executive Directonsl mne Non-Executive Director. The Board
Remuneration and Culture, Values and Conduct Coreenis chaired by an Independent Non-
Executive Director and meets at least twice a yddre Board Remuneration and Culture, Values
and Conduct Committee’s responsibility is to asfist Board in discharging its responsibility for
the design and operation of the Company's remuioeratystem, and the oversight of the
Company’s culture, values and conduct programmeéie Board has delegated to the Board
Remuneration and Culture, Values and Conduct Comenithe authority to approve the
remuneration packages for the Company’s senior geanant and key personnel with a view to
creating a remuneration system that incentivisepgr employee behavior, and to oversee the
implementation of the Company’s culture, values emduct programme.

Board Risk Committee

The Board Risk Committee comprises three Board neesptincluding two Independent Non-
Executive Directors and one Non-Executive Directofhe Board Risk Committee meets at a
minimum of 4 times a year and is chaired by an pedelent Non-Executive Director. The Board
Risk Committee oversees key risk matters and risleghance and recommends to the Board the
Company's risk appetite statements. It also reviewsually the Company’s risk management
strategy and policy, and reviews and ensures that Gompany has appropriate manpower
resources, infrastructure and other resources ystdrmas to identify, assess, monitor, and manage
risks.

Board Nomination Committee

Three Board members sit on the Board Nomination @itee including two Independent Non-
Executive Directors and one Non-Executive Directofhe Board Nomination Committee is
chaired by an Independent Non-Executive Directat meets as frequently as is properly required
to carry out its functions and at least once a.yddre Board Nomination Committee is responsible
for assisting and providing guidance to the Boardeiation to the appointment of board members,
and the assessment of board performance for thep@uyn

Key Management Level Committees

(@)

(b)

Management Committee

The Management Committee is chaired by the Chieéchtve of the Company and meets
monthly. The Management Committee oversees theatipes of the Company and provides a
regular forum for business leaders across the Coypa identify and discuss key issues and
actions that need to be taken to fulfill the Compsustrategy.

Bank Risk Committee

The Bank Risk Committee is chaired by the Chiefdixiwe of the Company and meets monthly.
The Bank Risk Committee provides a regular forumsenior representatives of the Company to
oversee the risk management practices within thapg2ay.
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A. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)

Internal Audit

The Internal Audit Department (“IAD”) is establighéo assist both senior management and the Board
Audit Committee in the effective discharge of themal, fiduciary, and oversight responsibilitid&\D
provides independent assurance on the quality Hiadtieeness of the Company'’s internal controlkris
management and governance systems and procesBethdfefore operates as the third line of defense
in the Company’s internal control governance framwafter business operations and the Company’s
oversight functions, to protect the assets andtagipn of the Company. IAD acts as an objective and
independent function within the Company’s risk ngeraent framework to promote an environment
that fosters continual improvement of risk managemprocesses. |AD identifies and assesses
operating risks and evaluates the adequacy andtigfaess of the Company’s system of internal
control. Accordingly, IAD develops an independeamtd informed view of the risks faced by the
Company and the risk management processes empioyednage those risks.

Compliance

The Company is committed to maintaining and upmgdiigh standards of corporate governance. The
Company has been in material compliance with thevlAKModule on “Corporate Governance of
Locally Incorporated Authorised institutions” (“C8) issued under the HKMA’s Supervisory Policy
Manual (“SPM”).

Financial disclosure policy

The Company has in place the financial disclosat&Eyp which is reviewed and approved by the Board
of the Company. It sets out (a) the process andoaphp in determining the content, appropriateness,
frequency, relevance and adequacy of the informadisclosed, and (b) governance and oversight of
the Company's disclosures for verifying or reviewihe accuracy of the information disclosed.
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B. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION
(a) By geographical area

The geographical segmental analysis for the yededB1 December 2018 is as follows:

Hong Kong®  Singapore® Total
2018 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
Total operating income (net of interest expens 231,701 82,95C 314,651
Profit before income tax 47,794 39,822 87,616
Total assets 1,841,68¢ 1,621,68¢ 3,463,374
Total liabilities 2,087,02¢ 1,067,44: 3,154,469

(1) The amounts disclosed above are after eliminatfanteroffice balances or transactions betweenhibad office in
Hong Kong and the Branch.

There were no contingent liabilities and commitnsea at 31 December 2018.
(b) By class of business
The main business segments of the Company ardlasso

(i) Wealth Management: the Company engages in the dmssiof banking including deposit
taking and lending. It also acts (a) as agent dralbef its customers in connection with the
provision of general investment, securities dealsmgwell as discretionary management and
(b) as introducing broker to Morgan Stanley & Cotetnational plc for the provision of
clearance, settlement and custody services inaBlad the aforementioned transactions.

(i) Treasury and others: includes treasury operatindsack office activities.

The Company’s business segment results for thegraded 31 December 2018 are as follows:

Wealth Treasury
Management®™ and others® Total
2018 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
Total operating income (net of interest expense 281,491 33,16C 314,651
Profit before income tax 80,22% 7,393 87,616
Total assets 1,602,82: 1,860,55: 3,463,374

(1) The amounts disclosed above are after eliminatfointeroffice balances or transactions betweentitad office in
Hong Kong and the Branch.

There were no impairment losses, specific provisiod collective provision for impaired assets for
the year.
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C. LOAN AND ADVANCES — SECTOR INFORMATION

As at
31 December
2018
Sector classification US$'000
Loans and advances for use in Hong Kong
Industrial, commercial and financi
- Financial concerr 8,47¢
- Others 491,136
Individuals
- Other: 122,60:
Loans and advances for use outside Hong Kong 976,08¢
Total 1,598,30:
The total loans were fully secured by collateraht81 December 2018.
As at
31 December
2018
Geographical Areas US$'000
Hong Kong 622,212
Taiwan 210,875
Singapore 200,016
Mainland China 141,365
Others 423,833
Total 1,598,301

Loan and Advances are exposures of counterparéissdbon the location of the counterparties after
taking into account any risk transfer. The riskngfers have been made if the claims are guarabieed
a party in a geographical area which is differeanf that of the counterparty or if the claims aneam
overseas branch of a bank whose head office isddda another geographical area.

D. INTERNATIONAL CLAIMS

International claims are on-balance sheet exposofesounterparties based on the location of the
counterparties after taking into account any riginsfer. The risk transfers have been made if the
claims are guaranteed by a party in a geographiea which is different from that of the countetpar
or if the claims are on an overseas branch of & bdmose head office is located in another geogiagbhi
area.

Non-bank private sector

Non-bank Non-financial

Official financial private
Bank sectol institutions sectol Total
31 December 2018 US$'00( US$'00( US$'00( USs$'00( US$'00(
Developed countries 296,89 1,044,41 19 2,48¢ 1,343,813
of which: United States 226,72. 1,044,41 17 391 1,271,542
Offshore centres 224,68( 100,01« 732,58 1,057,273
of which: Hong Kong 28,87 54,33: 426,28: 509,484
of which: Singapore 195,80¢ - 11 184,21¢ 380,038
Developing Asia and Pacific 2,64¢ 605,56. 608,21:.
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E. OVERDUE AND RESCHEDULED ASSETS
There were no impaired, overdue or rescheduledsaaseat 31 December 2018.

F. MAINLAND ACTIVITIES

Below is a breakdown of the Company’s Mainland expes to non-bank counterparties on the Hong
Kong office into the specified categories, in adamce with the numbers reported in the Return of
Mainland Activities submitted to the HKMA.

On-balance Off-balance

sheel sheel
As at 31 December 2018 exposures exposures Total
Type of counterparties US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
Local governments, local government-owned entitie 1 ) 1
and their subsidiaries and joint ventures (“JVs”)
cher e(gtmes of central government not reported i 30,19¢ ) 30,199
item 1
Other counterparties where the exposures are
considered by the reporting institution to be namb 229,99t - 229,995
Mainland China exposures
Total 260,19t - 260,195

(1) ltem 1 refers to non-bank counterparties whigk central government, central government-ownetitieen and their
subsidiaries and JVs, as specified in the RetuMaihland Activities.

G. CURRENCY RISK

The currency risk arising from the Company’s operatfor those individual currencies which each
constitutes more than 10% of the total net positiorall foreign currencies are as follows:

sGp® usp @
As at 31 December 2018 US$'000 US$'000
Spot assets 390,54¢ 2,334,134
Spot liabilities (143,354 (2,528,889)
Forward purchases 29,34¢€ 454,201
Forward sales (278,787 (246,429)
Net (short)/ long position (2,249) 13,017

(1) Net (short)/long positions in individual curcées of the Company are reported in gross, i.erdfice balances and
transactions between the head office in Hong Kambthe Branch are not eliminated.

The Company had no option and structural positiongny particular foreign currency as at 31
December 2018.
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H. PILLAR 3 DISCLOSURE

The capital adequacy ratios of the Company wereutated in accordance with Banking (Capital)
Rules of the Banking Ordinance. The Company useddhowing approaches to calculate its capital
charge for:

(a) credit risk: Standardised (Credit Risk) Approac8TC approach”); and
(b) operational risk: Basic Indicator Approach (“BlIAmpach”).

There was no risk-weighted amount (“RWA”) for markisk for the Company because the Company
was exempted by the HKMA from the calculation ofrkes risk.

The following templates and tables show the stahdésclosure templates and tables specified by the
HKMA in relation to the Pillar 3 disclosures reqedr under the Banking (Disclosure) Rules. Other
Pillar 3 templates or tables not disclosed belothegiare not applicable to the Company or have no
reportable amount for the period.

Table OVA: Overview of risk management
Risk Management Framework

The Company has established a risk governance Wvarkg“RGF”), which is vital to the success of the
Company's business activities. The RGF integrdiegdiverse roles of the Business Units, Support and
Control Functions, Firm Risk Management, and Coamgée Functions into a holistic enterprise
structure and facilitates the incorporation of r&sessment into decision-making processes adress t
Company. The Company’s RGF affirms to Morgan Stgslérm-wide risk governance framework.

RGF recognises that risks are often interrelatedi therefore should be managed Bank-wide on an
aggregate and individual basis. RGF encompasseSdh®any’s risk management culture, principles
and practices that support risk identification, swament, monitoring, escalation and decision-ngakin

processes. RGF views risk in a broad context andiders the risk to earnings and capital adequacy i

a stressed market environment, as well as the taskgure earnings due to reputational damage.

The principal risks involved in the Company’s b@sia activities include market, interest rate, ¢redi
operational, liquidity, compliance, conduct andutpional risk. Strategic risk is integrated inteet
Company’'s business planning, embedded in the et@tuaf all principal risks and overseen by the
Company’s Board of Directors (or a committee th&reo

The Company'’s articulation of the aggregate lewel types of risk that it is willing to accept inder to
achieve its business objectives is established,noamitated and monitored in accordance with the
Company’'s Risk Appetite Statement. The combinatibRisk Tolerance Statements, quantitative risk
limits, and Key Risk Indicators (“KRIs”) aims to sure the Company’s businesses are carried out in
line with the risk appetite established by the Camys Board, and to protect the Company’s capital
and reputation in both normal and stressed enviemtsn There are regular reporting, including
reporting on breaches, to the both management aaddBevel committees.

Risk Management Culture

The Company’s risk management culture requireCitiapany to seek acceptable risk-adjusted returns
through prudent risk- taking that protects the Camys capital base and franchise, and is faitlduhe
Company'’s risk appetite and core values. The Coripahree lines of defense, its Business Units,
Independent Risk Management and Compliance furstiand the Internal Audit Department, shall
play an integral role in enabling the Company'sitbieve the objectives of the RGF.

The Company’s risk management culture is baseti@following five key principles:

« Integrity : critical to Morgan Stanley Group’s approach tdefprise Risk Management (“ERM”) is
strong risk culture and risk governance. Develophey Morgan Stanley Group’s risk culture is a
continuous process and builds upon the Morgan 8taBroup’s commitment to “doing the right
thing” and its values that make managing risk eamployee’s responsibility;

» Comprehensivenessa well-defined, comprehensive risk governanceicttire maintained by
employees with appropriate risk management exjeetttiat provides for periodic assessment of the
efficacy of the Morgan Stanley Group’s risk managetframework;
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Table OVA: Overview of risk management (continued)
Risk Management Culture (continued)

¢ Independence independent lines of reporting for risk managersregard to identification,
measurement, monitoring, escalation and mitigatfonisk;

» Accountability: well-defined roles and responsibilities that bkt clear accountability for risk
management and are aligned with the Morgan Sta@leyup’s disciplinary and compensation
structure;

« Transparency. strong risk culture that encourages open dialpgffective challenge, escalation
and appropriate reporting of risk to senior manageirthe Board (or a committee thereof) and the
Company’s regulators as well as external disclssafeisk matters.

The Company executes risk oversight through malfiipes of defense.

e The first line of defenseis provided by the business units where riskstaken. In the course of
conducting business activities, staff in the bussnenits hold frontline positions in the proper
identification, assessment, management and regasfimisk exposures on an ongoing basis, having
regard to the Company’s risk appetite, policiescedures and controls.

* The second line of defensis provided by independent and effective risk ngangent and compliance
functions. The risk management function is prinyamdsponsible for overseeing the Company’s risk-
taking activities, undertaking risk assessments raparting independently from the business line,
while the compliance function monitors compliandéhvaws, corporate governance rules, regulations
and internal policies; and

» The third line of defenseis provided by an independent and effective irtieandit function, which is
responsible for providing assurance on the effenttgs of the Company's risk management
framework including the risk governance arrangeséntluding the first and second lines of defense
described above).

Risk Governance Structure

Risk management requires independent bank-levekigh, accountability of the Company’s business
segments, and effective communication of risk matte senior management and the Board. The nature
of the Company’s risks, coupled with this risk mgeent philosophy, forms the Company’s risk
governance structure.

The Company'’s risk governance structure includes:

Board of Directors
Board Audit
Committee

Board and Board level committees

Board Remuneration
and Culture, Values
and Conduct
Committee

Board Risk Board Nomination
Committee Committee

Management level
committees

Management
Committee

Bank Risk Committee
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Table OVA: Overview of risk management (continued)
Risk Governance Structure (continued)

Above committees are further detailed in SectionofAthe Unaudited Supplementary Financial
Information.

Risk Appetite Monitoring and Reporting

The Company’s Risk Appetite Framework requires mmmehensive approach to monitor, assess and
report on the risk profiles of the Company, Businesits on an ongoing basis, with regular reporting
to the Bank Risk Committee and Board Risk CommitfBlee reporting must include quantitative
measurements and qualitative assessments thateeaatbmparison of the Company’s current risk
profile against risk limits, KRIs and Risk ToleranStatements. Reporting must identify matters for
escalation and decisions, as well as highlight ggrrisks, mitigating actions and matters that are
significant to the Company'’s strategy.

Monitoring is an ongoing review of major risks amdtontrols at a set frequency. The scope and
frequency of monitoring depends on the types & @s well as on the specific business risk opanati
and activities. Adequate monitoring enables the Gamy to understand its risk profile across riskep
groups, and lines of business. It also helps thenfiamy to ascertain how particular risks may be
evolving or changing in reaction to controls anel ittnpact of emerging risks.

Risk data and analysis are reported at and acrespla levels of the Company, and to various
audiences, through an extensive suite of periodid ad hoc reports. Reports include backward-
looking, current, and forward-looking risk managetiaformation. The goal of effective risk repogin

is to provide actionable information that informailg business decisions, prompts responses to key
current and emerging issues, and ensures that rsemmagement and the Board maintain a
comprehensive view of key risk profiles.

Firm Risk Management Functions
Market Risk

The Market Risk Department (“MRD”) is responsibte the governance and oversight of all

market risk exposures arising from the Companwyslitrg and non-trading business activities
by identifying and defining market risks; develapiand employing risk measures and tools to
monitor, control and mitigate those risks; estdditig limits; monitoring usage against these
limits; and producing and distributing compreheasiveports designed to keep senior
management apprised of the Company's market risgogxes. MRD helps ensure

transparency of material market risks, which inelgidbut is not limited to, the escalation of
risk concentrations to senior management, as vgetha disclosure and reporting of market
risks to the Board and the Company’s regulatorierities.

Credit Risk

The Credit Risk Management Department (“CRM”) oees assesses, monitors, measures,
controls and reports on credit risk exposure tttutns and individuals primarily through the
Wealth Management businesses (“PWM Asia”). CRM &e@psure transparency of material
credit risks, which includes the escalation of Bgkicentrations to senior management, as well
as the disclosure and reporting of credit risksh® Board and the Company’s regulatory
authorities. CRM also works closely with MRD ancpbgable Business Units to monitor risk
exposures and to perform stress tests to idemifglyse and control credit risk concentrations
arising in PWM Asia’s lending and trading activitie
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Table OVA: Overview of risk management (continued)

Firm Risk Management Functions (continued)
Liquidity Risk
The Liquidity Risk Department (“LRD”) oversees tHeuidity risk arising from the
Company’s business activities. LRD independentlyueas transparency of material liquidity
risks, compliance with established risk limits, aation of risk concentrations to senior

management, adherence to sound business practees, compliance with applicable
regulations and supervisory guidance.

Operational Risk

The Operational Risk Department (“ORD”) provideslépendent oversight and challenge of
Operational Risk management within the Companydeytifying, measuring, monitoring and
controlling Operational Risks and independentlyidating the effectiveness and consistency
of risk management processes via its Operatiorsld fRamework.

Legal and Compliance Department

The Company has established procedures based analed) regulatory requirements that are designed
to facilitate compliance with applicable statutcepd regulatory requirements as well as Morgan
Stanley’s global standard relating to business uoncthics and practices.

Compliance Department

* The Compliance Department maintains an enterpride;windependent compliance risk
management program. The Compliance Departmentsigonsible for promoting a strong
culture of compliance; defining an operating moaetl setting standards for compliance risk
management; identifying, measuring, mitigating egyabrting on compliance risks; maintaining
a risk-based program for monitoring and testing mgiiance risk management by the risk
owners across the Company; providing managemenstafidwith advice, guidance (including
policies and, where appropriate, procedures) aaidimg concerning the laws, regulations and
policies associated with their responsibilities; naging a Company-wide compliance risk
reporting framework; reviewing new products anditess initiatives; and supporting and
facilitating the framework for managing significacbmmunications with regulators and
regulatory relationships through oversight by tleg&atory Relations Group.

Legal Department

e The Legal Department provides legal and regulatdyice that protects the Company's
financial well-being and reputation and assistskihsiness in evaluating risks associated with
completing transactions and other activities.

Global Financial Crimes

« The Company has adopted an AML policy which ouflinthe Company's anti-money
laundering compliance program. This AML policy sdtsth the guiding principles and
consistent standards for best practices designgdotect the Company’s business from being
used to facilitate money laundering, terrorist fici@ag, or other illicit activities.

 The Company is subject to risk of major regulateayctions and reputation damage if the
Company significantly fails to comply with applidabAML, sanction screening laws, or Anti-
Bribery and Corruption rules.

* AML related issues are reported as required toRtenchise Risk Officer, the Company’s
AML Committee, Management Committee and the Bodidiectors.

Internal Audit Department

IAD is established to assist both senior manageraadtthe Board Audit Committee in the effective
discharge of their legal, fiduciary, and oversigggponsibilities. It is further detailed in Seati& of the
Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information.
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Table OVA: Overview of risk management (continued)
Stress testing

Stress testing is one of the Company’s principed management tools, which is used to identify and
assess the impact of scenarios on its portfoliad @apital, covering all products offered by the
Company. Stress testing complements other compdahy-wisk metrics by providing a flexible
approach to understanding risk and assessing thep&uy’s resilience to different scenarios over a
range of severities, relevant to current marketdd@ns and forward looking macroeconomic views.
Most notably, stress testing is used for:

* Risk Management: Identifying areas of potential kvesss in Company’s portfolio as a basis for
senior management to take portfolio-level decisiatetermining risk mitigation actions and set
risk limits, and improving risk and control enviroent.

e Capital and Liquidity planning: Informing the progeml stressed capital and liquidity forecasts
through severe but plausible stress tests.

e Others including business planning, new producluai®sn and strategic business decision.

The MSAIL Stress Testing Framework utilises stressing methodologies, including sensitivity tests
and scenario analyses, to identify and assess Gonspasilience to different stress conductions.

Risk Mitigation
Risk Mitigation is further detailed in the note @ithe audited financial statements.
Adequacy of Risk Management Arrangements

The Company is satisfied that the risk managemeringements and systems, as described, are
appropriate given the strategy and risk profilete Company. These elements are reviewed at least
annually and, where applicable, updated to refleest practice, evolving market conditions and
changing regulatory requirements.
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Template KM1: Key Prudential Ratios

As al As al As at As al As al
31 30 30 31 31
December | September June March December
2018 2018 2018 2018 2017
USD’000 | USD'000 | USD’'000 | USD'000 | USD'000
Regulatory capital (amount)
Common Equity Tier 1 (“CET1") 287,226 273,366 pive] 232,685 219,236
Tier 1 287,225 273,366 259,078 232,685 219,236
Total capital 295,717 280,931 266,401 239,638 225,816
RWA (amount)
4 | Total RWA | 1,135987] 1047309 1021646 987,955 954,272
Risk-based regulatory capital ratios (as a percentge of RWA)
CETL1 ratio (%) 25% 26% 25% 24% 23%
Tier 1 ratio (%) 25% 26% 25%) 24% 23%
Total capital ratio (%) 269 27% 26% 24M6 24%
Additional CET1 buffer requirements (as a percentag of RWA)
Capital conservation buffer requirement (%) 1%75 1.875% 1.875% 1.875% 1.250%
Countercyclical capital buffer requirement (%) .935% 0.772% 0.8069 0.747% 0.528%
10| Fliherloss sbsorbency reaurement (0
1 Tg?}f‘gﬁf‘f’gffedqL”irséir::‘gr?t’; ((‘;2;")'Spe°iﬁ° 2810%|  2647% ~ 2.681%  2622%  1.778%
12| Cifimam capital requrements () 1% 1o%| 18w 164 16
Basel Ill leverage ratio
13 Total leverage ratio (“LR”) exposure measure 43,811 3,867,740 4,071,075 4,423,1P8 4,049,844
14 LR (%) 8.34% 7.07% 6.369 5.26% 5.41%
Liquidity Maintenance Ratio (“LMR”)
17a| LMR (%)@ | 61% | 60%| 52%) 53% 529%
Core Funding Ratio (“CFR”)
20a| CFR (% | 240%| 247% 2629 291%  N/AY
Note 1:  The Company is subject to the CFR requeérenwith effect from 1 January 2018.
Note 2:  The LMR and CFR disclosed above repregentarithmetic mean of the average LMR and avef2igR of the 3

calendar months within each quarter respectiveiye Tompany is not required, under the Banking (idity) Rules,
to calculate Liquidity Coverage Ratio or Net StalBlending Ratio for its liquidity risk.
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Template OV1: Overview of RWA

Minimum
capital
RWA requirements
As at As at As at
31 DZ%Cmeber Septse(l)”nber 31 Dz%clegmber
2018
uUsD'000 uUSsD'000 uUsD’'000

1 Credit risk for non-securitization exposures 677,941 601,476 54,235
2 Of which Standardised (Credit Risk) Approach (CSdpproach”) 677,941 601,476 54,235
2a Of which Basic Approach (“BSC approach”) - - -
3 Of which foundation Internal Ratings-Based (“IRBApproach - - -
4 Of which supervisory slotting criteria approach - - -
5 Of which advanced IRB approach - - -
6 Counterparty default risk and default fund cdnttions 1,393 3,735 111
7 O(E;v:_lgeSRtgndardlsed Approach for measuring Capatty Credit Risk Not applicable

7a Of which Current Exposure Method (“CEM”) 1,393 3,735 111
8 Of which Internal Models (Counterparty Credit Risk) ) ) )

Approach (“IMM(CCR) approach”)
9 Of which others - - -
10 Credit Valuation Adjustment (“CVA”) risk 634 1,698 51
11 Eq.uity positions in banking book under the sims&-weight method and ) ) )
internal models method

12 CO(I‘I‘eL'(I:'EOi\\'{)e investment scheme (“CIS”) exposures ek-0hrough Approach Not applicable

13 CIS exposures — Mandate-Based Approach (“MBA”) Not applicable

14 CIS exposures — Fall-Back Approach (“FBA”) Not applicable

1l4a CIS exposures — combination of approaches Not applicable

15 Settlement risk - - -
16 Securitization exposures in banking book - - -
17 Of which Securitization Internal Ratings-Basgupfoach (“SEC-IRBA”) - - -
18 Of which Securitization External Ratings-Baseipfoach (“SEC-ERBA”) - - -
19 Of which Securitization Standardised Approa@EC-SA”) - - -
19a Of which Securitization Fall-Back Approach ({GEBA”) - - -
20 Market risk - - -
21 Of which Standardised (Market Risk) ApproachT{V6approach”) - - -
22 Of which Internal Models Approach (“IMM approdgh - - -
I R o

24 Operational risk 465,109 450,454 37,209
25 Amf)unt”s below the thresholds for deduction (sulie@50% Risk-Weight ) ) )

(‘RW")
26 Capital floor adjustment - - -
26a Deduction to RWA 9,090 10,054 727
e B A o R ol
26c Of which _portion of cumulat_ive fair va!ue gainss_'rimig fr_om _the ) } } )
revaluation of land and buildings which is not ird#d in Tier 2 Capital
27 Total 1,135,987 1,047,309 90,879
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Template OV1: Overview of RWA (continued)

The disclosure on minimum capital requirement igleney multiplying the Company’s RWA derived
from the relevant calculation approach by 8%, het€ompany’s actual “regulatory capital”.

Increase in total RWA during the fourth quarte20dil8 was US$88,678,000. The key driver was due to
increase in RWA for credit risk for non-securitiosit exposures arising from loans and advances to

customers.

Template LI1: Differences between accounting and ulatory scopes of consolidation and
mapping of financial statement categories with regiatory risk categories

Carrying Carrying values of items:
values
as reported in not subject
published : subject to ) subject to to capital
financial subject to counterparty subject to the market requirements
statements/ credit risk credit risk securitization risk or subject to
under scope of | framework | ¢ o o framework | ¢ mework deduction
regulgtor_y from capital
consolidation
As at 31 December 2018 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
Assets
Cash and short-term 538,485 538,485 ) )
deposits
Trading financial assets 9619 - 96 - -
Loans and advances to 1,598,301 1,598,30 } }
customers
Investment securities 1,315,300 1,315,300 - - -
Trade a_md other 6,172 6172 ) ) ) )
receivables
Deferred tax assets 4,023 - - - - 4,023
Prepayments 124 124 - - - -
Total assets 3,463,374| 3,458,382 969 - - 4,023
Liabilities
Deposits 3,029,991 - 3,029,991
Tra_dln_g _fmanmal 3,164 _ 3,164 - - -
liabilities
Trade and other payable: 112,919 - - - 112,919
Current tax liabilities 7,667 - 7,662
Accruals 733 - - - - 733
Total liabilities 3,154,469 - 3,164 - - 3,151,305

The Company’s scope of accounting consolidation isadcope

same.

of

regulatory consolidation are the
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Template PV1: Prudent valuation adjustments

The following table shows the detailed breakdownthef constituent elements of prudent valuation
adjustments, for assets measured at fair value.

Equity

Interest
rates

Foreign
Exchange
(“FX")

Credit

Commodities

Total

Of which:
In the
trading
book

Of which:
In the
banking
book

As at
31 December 2018

US$'000 US$'000 US$'000

US$'000

US$'000

US$'000

US$'000

Close-out uncertainty
of which:

123

15

138

138

Mid-market valur
Close-out cost
Concentratiol

40
83

15

40
98

40
98|

Early terminatiol

Model risk

Operational risk

Investng and funding
costt

Unearned credit spree

5l © ooﬂmmb‘m|l\> =

Future administrativ
costt

11

Other adjustmen @

(62)

@)

(69)

(69)

12

Total adjustments

67

9

76

76|

Note 1:

reduction in valuation adjustment required.

For other adjustments, it refers to thesdiification benefits from mid-market value andsd-out costs, resulting in

The highest amount of valuation adjustments aréatable to the interest rate products measured at
fair value, mainly government debt securities.

For rows that are not applicable, there are imnwtesks and financial impacts from those elemexfits
valuation adjustments regarding to the Companwyarfcial assets.
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Template CC1: Composition of regulatory capital

Source based on
reference numbers o
the balance sheet
under the regulatory

Amount scope of consolidatio
As at 31 December 2018 UsD’'000 (Template CC2)
CET1 capital: instruments and reserves
1 Directly issued qualifying CET1 capital instrunteeplus any related share premium 170,00d (1)
2 Retained earnings 137,937 2)
3 Disclosed reserves 968 3)
4 Directly issued capital subject to phase-out arramgnts from CET1 (only applicable t¢ Not applicable Not applicable
non-joint stock companies)
5 Minority interests arising from CET1 capital instrants issued by consolidated bank
subsidiaries and held by third parties (amountaid in CET1 capital of the -
consolidation group)
6 CET1 capital before regulatory adjustments 308,905
CET1 capital: regulatory deductions
Valuation adjustments 76
Goodwill (net of associated deferred tax liatgi8) -
Other intangible assets (net of associated aefeax liabilities) -
10 Deferred tax assets (net of associated defeaxelthbilities) 4,023 (4)
11 Cash flow hedge reserve -
12 Excess of total EL amount over total eligibleypsions under the IRB approach -
13 Credit-enhancing interest-only strip, and any gairsale and other increase in the )
CET1 capital arising from securitization transagsio
14 Gains and losses due to changes in own credibrisir valued liabilities -
15 Defined benefit pension fund net assets (net afciated deferred tax liabilities) -
16 Investments in own CET1 capital instruments (if aloeady netted off paid-in capital on }
reported balance sheet)
17 Reciprocal cross-holdings in CET1 capital instrutaen -
18 Insignificant capital investments in CET1 capitatruments issued by financial sector
entities that are outside the scope of regulatonsalidation (amount above 10% -
threshold)
19 Significant capital investments in CET1 capitatinments issued by financial sector
entities that are outside the scope of regulatonsalidation (amount above 10% -
threshold)
20 Mortgage servicing rights (net of associated defktax liabilities) Not applicable Not applicable
21 Deferred tax assets arising from temporary diffeesn(net of associated deferred tax Not applicable Not applicable
liabilities)
22 Amount exceeding the 15% threshold Not applicable Not applicable
23 of which: significant investments in the ordinahase of financial sector entities Not applicable Not applicable
24 of which: mortgage servicing rights Not applicable Not applicable
25 of which: deferred tax assets arising from tempodifferences Not applicable Not applicable
26 National specific regulatory adjustments apple€ET1 capital -
26a | Cumulative fair value gains arising from the rewaion of land and buildings (own-use )
and investment properties)
26b Regulatory reserve for general banking risks 17,581
26¢ Securitization exposures specified in a najicen by the MA -
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Template CC1: Composition of regulatory capital (catinued)

Source based on

reference numbers of

the balance sheet

under the regulatory

n

Amount scope of consolidatio
As at 31 December 2018 UsD’000 (Template CC2)

26d Cumulative losses below depreciated cost arisio fihe institution's holdings of land }
and buildings

26e Capital shortfall of regulated non-bank sulasids -

26f Capital investment in a connected company whiéhdesmmercial entity (amount abovg )
15% of the reporting institution's capital base)

27 Regulatory deductions applied to CET1 capital du@gufficient AT1 capital and Tier 2 :
capital to cover deductions

28 Total regulatory deductions to CET1 capital 21,680

29 CET1 capital 287,22
AT1 capital: instruments

30 Qualifying AT1 capital instruments plus any tethshare premium -

31 of which: classified as equity under applicameounting standards -

32 of which: classified as liabilities under applite accounting standards -

33 Capital instruments subject to phase-out arrangesy@om AT1 capital -

34 AT1 capital instruments issued by consolidated brardsidiaries and held by third )
parties (amount allowed in AT1 capital of the cditsdion group)

35 of which: AT1 capital instruments issued by sulssids subject to phase-out :

arrangements

36 AT1 capital before regulatory deductions -
AT1 capital: regulatory deductions

37 Investments in own AT1 capital instruments -

38 Reciprocal cross-holdings in AT1 capital insteunts -

39 Insignificant capital investments in AT1 capitasiruments issued by financial sector
entities that are outside the scope of regulatonsalidation (amount above 10% -
threshold)

40 Significant capital investments in AT1 capital mshents issued by financial sector }
entities that are outside the scope of regulatonsalidation

41 National specific regulatory adjustments appl@AT1 capital -

42 Regulatory deductions applied to AT1 capital dusnsuifficient Tier 2 capital to cover :
deductions

43 Total regulatory deductions to AT1 capital -

44 AT1 capital -

45 Tier 1 capital (T1 = CET1 + AT1) 287,224
Tier 2 capital: instruments and provisions

46 Qualifying Tier 2 capital instruments plus asjated share premium -

47 Capital instruments subject to phase-out arranges&om Tier 2 capital -

48 Tier 2 capital instruments issued by consolididi@nk subsidiaries and held by third }
parties (amount allowed in Tier 2 capital of thesalidation group)

49 of which: capital instruments issued by subsidissebject to phase-out :

arrangements

50 Collective provisions and regulatory reserve faneyal banking risks eligible for 8 492
inclusion in Tier 2 capital '

51 Tier 2 capital before regulatory deductions 8,492
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Template CC1: Composition of regulatory capital (catinued)

Source based on
reference numbers of

the balance sheet
under the regulatory

n

Amount scope of consolidatio
As at 31 December 2018 UsD’'000 (Template CC2)
Tier 2 capital: regulatory deductions
52 Investments in own Tier 2 capital instruments -
53 Reciprocal cross-holdings in Tier 2 capital imstents -
54 Insignificant capital investments in Tier 2 capitastruments issued by financial sector
entities that are outside the scope of regulatonsalidation (amount above 10% -
threshold)
55 Significant capital investments in Tier 2 capitadtruments issued by financial sector
entities that are outside the scope of regulatonsalidation (net of eligible short -
positions)
56 National specific regulatory adjustments appl@dier 2 capital -
56a Add back of cumulative fair value gains arisingifrthe revaluation of land and )
buildings (own-use and investment properties) lelgfor inclusion in Tier 2 capital
57 Total regulatory adjustments to Tier 2 capital -
58 Tier 2 capital (T2) 8,492
59 Total regulatory capital (TC =T1 + T2) 295,711
60 Total RWA 1,135,981
Capital ratios (as a percentage of RWA)
61 CET1 capital ratio 25%
62 Tier 1 capital ratio 25%
63 Total capital ratio 26%
64 Institution-specific buffer requirement (capital conservation buffer plus
L : . . 2.810%
countercyclical capital buffer plus higher loss absrbency requirements)
65 of which: capital conservation buffer requiremen 1.875%
66 of which: bank specific countercyclical caphalfer requirement 0.935%
67 of which: higher loss absorbency requirement 0%
68 CET1 (as a percentage of RWA) available after mgetiinimum capital requirements 18%
National minima (if different from Basel 3 minimum)
69 National CET1 minimum ratio Not applicable Not applicable
70 National Tier 1 minimum ratio Not applicable Not applicable
71 National Total capital minimum ratio Not applicable Not applicable
Amounts below the thresholds for deduction (beforeisk weighting)
72 Insignificant capital investments in CET1, AT1 aFidr 2 capital instruments issued by )
financial sector entities that are outside the saaffregulatory consolidation
73 Significant capital investments in CET1 capitatinments issued by financial sector }
entities that are outside the scope of regulatonsalidation
74 Mortgage servicing rights (net of associated defétax liabilities) Not applicable Not applicable
75 Deferred tax assets arising from temporary diffeesn(net of associated deferred tax Not applicable Not applicable

liabilities)
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Template CC1: Composition of regulatory capital (catinued)

Source based on
reference numbers of

the balance sheet
under the regulatory

Amount scope of consolidation
As at 31 December 2018 UsD’'000 (Template CC2)
Applicable caps on the inclusion of provisions in iEr 2 capital
76 Provisions eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 in resqt of exposures subject to the BSC
approach, or the STC approach and SEC-ERBA, SEGHBASEC-FBA (prior to -
application of cap)
77 Cap on inclusion of provisions in Tier 2 under B®C approach, or the STC approach, )
and SEC-ERBA, SEC-SA and SEC-FBA
78 Provisions eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 in re=p of exposures subject to the IRB }
approach and SEC-IRBA (prior to application of cap)
79 Cap for inclusion of provisions in Tier 2 undee IRB approach and SEC-IRBA -
Capital instruments subject to phase-out arrangemets
(only applicable between 1 Jan 2018 and 1 Jan 2022)
80 Current cap on CET1 capital instruments subjeqifiase-out arrangements Not applicable Not applicable
81 Amount excluded from CET1 due to cap (excess eyeafter redemptions and Not applicable Not applicable
maturities)
82 Current cap on AT1 capital instruments subjecthage-out arrangements -
83 Amount excluded from AT1 capital due to cap (exoesscap after redemptions and )
maturities)
84 Current cap on Tier 2 capital instruments subjecphase-out arrangements -
85 Amount excluded from Tier 2 capital due to capgesmver cap after redemptions and B
maturities)
Elements where a more conservative definition heenkapplied in the BCR relative to that set ouBasel Il capital
standards are disclosed below in Notes to the Tapl
Notes to the Template
Hong Kong Basel lll
basis basis
Description USD’00( usD’00(
10 Deferred tax assets (“DTAs”) (net of associated defred tax liabilities) 4,023 4,023

Explanation

As set out in paragraphs 69 and 87 of the BasééMt issued by the Basel Committee (December 2@TAs of the bank to be
realised are to be deducted, whereas DTAs whictteréd temporary differences may be given limitecognition in CET1 capital
(and hence be excluded from deduction from CET ltalayp to the specified threshold). In Hong Korg,Al is required to deduct]
all DTAs in full, irrespective of their origin, fro CET1 capital. Therefore, the amount to be destlas reported in row 10 may be
greater than that required under Basel Ill. Thewmhreported under the column "Basel Il basisthis box represents the amou
reported in row 10 (i.e. the amount reported utider'Hong Kong basis") adjusted by reducing the amhof DTAs to be deducted
which relate to temporary differences to the exteot in excess of the 10% threshold set for DTAsireg from temporary
differences and the aggregate 15% threshold sé¥I8Rs, DTAs arising from temporary differences aighificant investments in
CET1 capital instruments issued by financial seetatities (excluding those that are loans, faesitor other credit exposures tp
connected companies) under Basel III.

—

Abbreviations:
CET1: Common Equity Tier 1
AT1: Additional Tier 1
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Template CC2: Reconciliation of regulatory capitalto balance sheet

Balance sheet as ir
published financial | Reference
disclosurestatementy to template
(Note) CC1

As at 31 December 2018 USD’000
Assets
Cash and short-term deposits 538,485
Trading financial assets 969
Loans and advances to customers 1,598,301
Investment securities 1,315,300
Trade and other receivables 6,172
Deferred tax assets 4,023 4)
Prepayments 124
Total assets 3,463,374
Liabilities
Deposits 3,029,991
Trading financial liabilities 3,164
Trade and other payables 112,919
Current tax liabilities 7,662
Accruals 733
Total liabilities 3,154,469
Shareholders’ equity
Share capital 170,000

Of which: amount eligible for CET1 170,00 (D)
FVOCI reserve 968 3)
Retained earnings 137,937 (2
Total shareholders’ equity 308,905

Note: The Company’s scope of accounting consolidatiahits scope of regulatory consolidation are
the same.
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Table CCA: Main features of regulatory capital instuments

The following table shows the main features of autding capital instruments issued.

Quantitative / qualitative information

P15

1 Issuer Morgan Stanley Asia International Limited

2 Unique identifier (e.g. CUSIP, ISIN or Bloombergitifier for private placement)| Not applicable

3 Governing law(s) of the instrument Hong Kong Law

Regulatory treatment

4 Transitional Basel Il rulds Not applicable

5 Post-transitional Basel Il rulés Common Equity Tier 1

6 Eligible at solo / group / solo and group Solo

7 Instrument type (types to be specified by eaclsqliction) Ordinary shares

8 ;:ergszir:grz::g;ised in regulatory capital (curreneynillions, as of most recent US$170 million

9 Par value of instrument Not applicable

10 | Accounting classification Shareholders’ equity

11 | Original date of issuance ¢ 1 shareissued on 19 May 2014
« 13,000,000 shares issued on 11 July 2014
e 156,999,998 shares issued on 13 January 2
e 1 shareissued on 9 February 2015

12 | Perpetual or dated Perpetual

13 Original maturity date No maturity

14 | Issuer call subject to prior supervisory approval No

15 Optional call date, contingent call dates and rqutem amount Not applicable

16 Subsequent call dates, if applicable Not applicable

Coupons / dividends

17 Fixed or floating dividend / coupon Floating

18 Coupon rate and any related index Not applicable

19 Existence of a dividend stopper No

20 Fully discretionary, partially discretionary or nutory Fully discretionary

21 Existence of step-up or other incentive to redeem No

22 Non-cumulative or cumulative Non-cumulative

23 | Convertible or non-convertible Non-convertible

24 If convertible, conversion trigger(s) Not applicable

25 If convertible, fully or partially Not applicable

26 If convertible, conversion rate Not applicable

27 If convertible, mandatory or optional conversion Not applicable

28 If convertible, specify instrument type convertiiriéo Not applicable

29 If convertible, specify issuer of instrument it eents into Not applicable

30 | Write-down feature No

31 If write-down, write-down trigger(s) Not applicable

32 If write-down, full or partial Not applicable

33 If write-down, permanent or temporary Not applicable

34 If temporary write-down, description of write-ogechanism Not applicable
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Table CCA: Main features of regulatory capital insruments (continued)

Quantitative / qualitative information

35 | Position in subordination hierarchy in liquidsti(specify instrument type
immediately senior to instrument in the insolvenoyditor hierarchy of the legal | Not applicable
entity concerned).

36 | Non-compliant transitioned features No

37 | If yes, specify non-compliant features Not applicable

Footnote:

1.Regulatory treatment of capital instruments sultiettansitional arrangements provided for in SchedH to the BCR.
2.Regulatory treatment of capital instruments nofettto transitional arrangements provided for ¢th&lule 4H to the BCR.

Information relating to the disclosure of the filfms and conditions of the Company’s capital insnts can be viewed on the

website:http://www.morganstanley.com/about-us/global-offit®ng-kong

Template CCyB1: Geographical distribution of credit exposures used in countercyclical capital

buffer (“CCyB")

As at 31 December 2018
Applicable RWA used in "
JCCyB ratio in computation of Al-specific
Geographical breakdown by effect CCyB ratio CCyB ratio CCyB amount
Jurisdiction (J) % US$'000 % US$'000
1 Hong Kong SAR 1.875Y 284,5
2 United Kingdom 1.000% 9

3 Sum

285,50(

4 Total (Note)

Note:

The geographical allocation of private sector drextiposures to the various jurisdictions is based‘utimate risk basis”.
“Ultimate risk basis” means the allocation of exp@s to the jurisdictions where the risk ultimatégs, as defined as the
location where the “ultimate obligor” resides.

Total RWA on Row 4 represents total sum of the RWAprivate sector credit exposures across alsglictions to which the
Company is exposed, including jurisdictions withapplicable JCCyB ratio or with applicable JCCyBaaet at zero.

The CCyB amount as at 31 December 2018 repredemt€ampany’s specific CCyB ratio multiplied by tBempany’s total
RWA, as specified by the standard disclosure teteplssued by the HKMA, instead of the Company’'s/Rislating to private
sector credit exposures.
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Template LR1: Summary comparison of accounting as$e against leverage ratio exposure
measure

Value under the

As at 31 December 2018 LR framework
Item USD’000
Total consolidated assets as per published fiabdisclosure statements 3,463,374

Adjustment for investments in banking, financiakurance or commercial entities that are
consolidated for accounting purposes but outsidestiope of regulatory consolidation

3 Adjustment for fiduciary assets recognised on thilarice sheet pursuant to the applicable
accounting standard but excluded from the LR exygomeasure

Adjustments for derivative contracts 1,817

Adjustment for securities financing transacti¢i®=Ts") (i.e. repos and similar secured lending) -

Adjustment for off-balance sheet (“OBS”) items .(cenversion to credit equivalent amounts o
OBS exposures)

6a | Adjustment for specific and collective provisiohsit are allowed to be excluded from exposure

measure
Other adjustments (21,680)
Leverage ratio exposure measure 3,443,511
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Template LR2: Leverage Ratio

As al As at
31 December | 30 September
2018 2018

USsD’000 uSsD’000

On-balance sheet exposur:

1 | On-balance sheet exposures (excluding those affisingderivative contracts and
SFTs, but including collateral)

2 | Less: Asset amounts deducted in determiningTeapital (21,680) (22,177)

3,462,405 3,881,324

3 | Total on-balance sheet exposures (excluding derive¢ contracts and SFTs) 3,440,725 3,859,147
Exposures arising from derivative contracts

4 | Replacement cost associated with all derivatdregracts (where applicable net of

eligible cash variation margin and/or with bilateratting) ) 1,239

5 | Add-on amounts for potential future exposure (“PF&Ssociated with all

derivative contracts 2,786 7,354

6 | Gross-up for derivatives collateral provided whaeeucted from the balance sheet
assets pursuant to the applicable accounting framew

7 | Less: Deductions of receivables assets for casatiar margin provided under
derivative contracts

8 | Less: Exempted Central Counterparty (“CCP”) leglt-cleared trade
exposures

9 | Adjusted effective notional amount of writtenditelerivative contracts - -

10 | Less: Adjusted effective notional offsets and adddeductions for written credit
derivative contracts

11 | Total exposures arising from derivative contracts 2,786 8,593
Exposures arising from SFTs

12 | Gross SFT assets (with no recognition of nettiafigr adjusting for sale
accounting transactions

13 | Less: Netted amounts of cash payables and easlvables of gross SFT assets - -

14 | Counterparty Credit Risk (“CCR”") exposure forTsssets - -

15 | Agent transaction exposures - -

16 | Total exposures arising from SFTs - -
Other off-balance sheet exposures

17 | Off-balance sheet exposure at gross notionatiatno - -

18 | Less: Adjustments for conversion to credit egl@mt amounts -

19 | Off-balance sheet items - -
Capital and total exposures
20 | Tier 1 capital 287,225 273,366

QD

20a| Total exposures before adjustments for specific andollective provisions 3,443,511 3,867,740,

20b| Adjustments for specific and collective provisions - o

21 | Total exposures after adjustments for specific andollective provisions 3,443,511 3,867,740

Leverage ratio
22 | Leverage ratio | 8.34% | 7.07%

The increase in leverage ratio during the perioch&nly due to (a) an increase in Tier 1 capital
attributed to the profit retained for the quarteded 31 December 2018 and (b) decrease in total on-
balance sheet exposures mainly due to decreasposids of non-bank customers during the quarter
ended 31 December 2018.
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Table LIQA: Liquidity risk management

(a) Governance of liquidity risk management
(i) Risk tolerance

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Compawill be unable to finance its operations due to a
loss of access to the capital markets or difficudtiiquidating its assets.

The Company's Liquidity Risk Management Framewoskcritical to helping ensure that the
Company maintains sufficient liquidity reserves ashgrable funding sources to meet its daily
obligations and to withstand unanticipated stressts.

The Required Liquidity Framework reflects the amooinliquidity the company must hold in both
normal and stressed environments to ensure thatdhgany’s financial condition and overall
soundness are not adversely affected by an inaktit perceived inability) to meet financial
obligations in a timely manner. The Required Lidtyid-ramework considers the most constraining
liquidity requirement to satisfy all regulatory aidernal limits at a consolidated and legal entity
level.

(ii) Risk management function

Senior management establishes and maintains ltguidilicies. Through various risk and control
committees, senior management reviews businessrp&fice relative to these policies, monitors
the availability of alternative sources of finarginand oversees the liquidity, interest rate and
currency sensitivity of asset and liability positso Corporate Treasury, Liquidity Risk Department,
ALCO and other committees and control groups agsisvaluating, monitoring and controlling the
impact that business activities have on the Balatoeet, liquidity and capital structure. Liquidity
matters are reported regularly to the Board andRisk Committees of the Company.

(b) Funding strategy

The primary goal of the Liquidity Risk Managememtafework is to ensure that the Company has
access to sufficient liquidity and assets acroside range of market conditions and time horizdree
framework is designed to allow the Company to fdifiancial obligations and support the executién o
its business strategies. The funding managemetiteo€ompany is centralised in Corporate Treasury.
The following principles guide the Liquidity Riskahagement Framework:

» Sufficient liquid assets should be maintained teecamaturing liabilities and other planned
and contingent outflows;

* Maturity profile of assets and liabilities should aligned, with limited reliance on short-term
funding;

e Source, counterparty, currency, region and terfurmding should be diversified;

» Liquidity Stress Tests should anticipate, and antéar, periods of limited access to funding.

(c) Liquidity Stress Tests

The Company uses Liquidity Stress Tests to modtreal and intercompany liquidity flows across
multiple scenarios and a range of time horizonses€hscenarios contain various combinations of
idiosyncratic and systemic stress events of differseverity and duration. The methodology,
implementation, production and analysis of the Canys Liquidity Stress Tests are important
components of the Required Liquidity Framework.

Liquidity Stress Tests are produced for the Compamycapture specific cash requirements and cash
availability. The Liquidity Stress Tests assumet thdegal entity will use its own liquidity firsbtfund

its obligations before drawing liquidity from itdtimate parent undertaking, Morgan Stanley. Morgan
Stanley will support its subsidiaries and will f@tve access to subsidiaries’ liquidity reserves dna
subject to any regulatory, legal or tax constraimisaddition to the assumptions underpinning the
Liquidity Stress Tests, the Company takes into ictamation the settlement risk related to intra-day
settlement and clearing of securities and finaneictiyities.
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Table LIQA: Liquidity risk management (continued)
(d) Liquidity risk mitigation techniques

Liquidity Reserve

The Company maintains sufficient liquidity reserv€4iquidity Reserve”) to meet regulatory
requirements, cover daily funding needs and to rs&rategic liquidity targets sized by the Required
Liquidity Framework and Liquidity Stress Tests. Tiee of the Liquidity Reserve is actively managed
by the Company considering the following componeutsecured debt maturity profile; balance sheet
size and composition; funding needs in a stressed@ment inclusive of contingent cash outflows;
regulatory requirements; and collateral requiremeit addition, the Company’s Liquidity Reserve
includes a discretionary surplus based on the Cagiparisk tolerance and is subject to change
depending on market and firm-specific events.

The Company holds its own Liquidity Reserve whichdomposed of diversified cash and cash
equivalents and unencumbered highly liquid se@giti

Eligible unencumbered highly liquid securities umb¢ primarily non-US government securities in
addition to US government securities

Funding Management

The Company manages its funding in a manner thtces the risk of disruption to the Company’s
operations. The Company pursues a strategy of gifieation of secured and unsecured funding
sources (by product, investor and region) and giterio ensure that the tenor of its liabilities &guor
exceeds the expected holding period of the assétg financed.

The Company funds itself through diverse sourcé®s& sources may include the Company’s equity
capital, borrowings and deposits. The table belbens the Company’s significant funding sources as
at 31 December 2018:

As at
Significant funding sources (as a percentage of thetal liabilities and 31 December
equity) 2018
Funding from deposits 87%
Funding from share capi 5%

Balance sheet management

In managing both the Morgan Stanley Group’s and@benpany’s liquidity risk the composition and
size of the entire balance sheet, not just finddighilities, is monitored and evaluated. A sulosial
portion of the Morgan Stanley Group’s total assmissists of liquid marketable securities and short-
term receivables arising principally from sales &ratling activities in the Institutional Securities
business. The liquid nature of these assets prewtiee Morgan Stanley Group and the Company with
flexibility in managing the composition and sizeitsfbalance sheet.

The table below shows the Company’s future cashs]daking into account off-balance sheet risks, as
at 31 December 2018, which is disclosed in accarelamith the numbers reported in the Return of
Liquidity Position for the month of 31 December 8Glubmitted to the HKMA.

As at

31 December
2018
UsD’000

Liquefiable assets (weighted amot 1,531,35:
Qualifying liabilities (weighted amount) 2,728,462
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Table LIQA: Liquidity risk management (continued)
(d) Liquidity risk mitigation techniques (continued)
Maturity analysis

The table below shows the analysis of on- and lmdfance sheet items by remaining maturity and the
resultant liquidity gaps. This presentation is ddesed by the Company to appropriately reflect the
liquidity risk arising from those assets and lidlgk, presented in a way that is consistent witv tthe
liquidity risk is managed by the Company. The belaformation is prepared in accordance with the
numbers reported in the Return of Liquidity Monitgr Tools as at 31 December 2018, based on the
completion instruction from the HKMA. Accordinglthe classification of on-balance sheet assets, on-
balance sheet liabilities, off-balance sheet claamg off-balance sheet obligations are not the sasne
that disclosed under the audited financial statésaen

Breakdown of cash flows by remaining maturity

More
than 6 More
More than ~ More than 3 months than 1
1 month  months but butnot year but

Not more but not not more more not more
than1 more than 3 than 6 than 1 than 5 Over5 Balancing
month months months year years years amount
As at 31 December 2018 USD'000 USD’'000 USD’000 USD’000 USD'000 USD’000 USD’000

On-balance sheet items

Amount receivable arising from derivative contracts 512,30€ 182,025 R _

Due from banks and overseas central banks 537,771 R R _ R R 2,448
Debt securities 1,129,93¢ 182,922 R -

Loans and advances to non-bank customers 1,476,77¢ 54,159 70,705 1,018

Other assets 382 81 31 - 2,445 - 4,148
Total on-balance sheet assets 3,657,17C 419,187 70,736 1,018 2445 - 6,596
Total off-balance sheet claims 3,096 R . R

On-balance sheet items

Deposits from non-bank customers 2,613,147 142,708 169,505 109,021

Amount payable arising from derivative contracts 512,83¢ 183,412 : R

Due to banks

1,202 - - -
Other liabilities 51,113 39,052 1335 8120 16458
Capital and reserves R : : R : : 308,968
Total on-balance sheet liabilities 317829:  365,17% 170,84C 117,141 16,458 - 308,96
Total off-balance sheet obligations 207,842 3,108 ; R
Contractual Maturity Mismatch 184,131 50,906 100,104 116,122 14,013 - NA
Cumulative Contractual Maturity Mismatch 184,131 235,037 134,932 18,810 4,797 4,797 NA
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Table LIQA: Liquidity risk management (continued)
(e) Contingency funding plan

The Company has developed a Liquidity Stress E¥aybook (the “Playbook”) that captures the
governance, liquidity management tools for evenentdication, and processes for Playbook activation
and de-activation during liquidity stress events fbe Company. The Playbook documents the
Company's systematic approach to accessing aveilaplidity sources, in addition to those used for
day to day operations, to meet its obligations maghtain operational services during a liquidityrest
event.

The Playbook supports the existing liquidity riskmagement framework and defines processes for:

« Identification through quantitative measures obgeptial or actual liquidity stress event;
< Definition of roles and responsibilities for playdoactivation and execution;

e Coordination and communication in response to diijyishortfalls;

« |dentification of available contingent liquidity sces;

* Return to standard operating liquidity managemtaitis, and post-event analysis.
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Table CRA: General information about credit risk
Overview

Credit risk refers to the risk of loss arising wheetborrower, counterparty or issuer does not niset i
financial obligations to the Company.

The Company incurs credit risk primarily in the WleaJlanagement business through margin loans to
its clients. Margin loans are asset-based in eataecured by mostly cash and marketable secunitiels
with the Company as collateral. Credit risk frone timargin loan portfolio is largely mitigated by the
quality of the collateral held under a conservatnergin policy.

The Company also incurs credit risk through a ¥gr@# treasury activities from: (i) bank exposures
with respect to agent banks and securities purchaseer agreements to resell; and (ii) sovereign
exposures from government debt securities. Thetaiskl of these activities is mitigated by highedit
quality of bank counterparties and the sovereidities.

Credit Risk Management

The Company’s credit risk management policies andgulures establish the framework for identifying,
measuring, monitoring and controlling credit riskile ensuring transparency of material credit risks
compliance with established limits and escalatislg concentrations to appropriate senior management
and the Board of Directors. A Credit Limits Framelvds utilised to manage credit risk levels across
the Company. The Credit Limits Framework is caltbd within the Company’s risk appetite and
includes stress loss, product, collateral concéatracorrelated collateral, single-name, regubat@nd
connected lending limits.

The Company executes oversight of credit risk mamamt through three lines of defense. The
Company believes this structure creates clear eltion of responsibilities and facilitates effeetiv
implementation of the control framework.

(i) Business Unit — the first line of defense with decalised ownership and business management
accountability.

(ii) Credit Risk Management Department (“CRM”) — thess®tline of defense providing independent
risk oversight and challenges.

(i) Internal Audit Department (“IAD”) — the third linef defense independently assessing the
Company’s operating and control environment androbprocesses.

Credit risk exposure is actively managed by busingst, CRM and senior management. A variety of
credit risk reports are distributed daily to bussenit and CRM, monthly to Credit and Market Risk
Committee and Bank Risk Committee where membeiigkipdes senior management, and quarterly to
Board Risk Committee and the Board of Directors.

Details of the Financial Risk Managements are &mttietailed in note 24 to the audited financial
statements, and Table OVA of the Unaudited Supphang Financial Information.
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Template CR1: Credit quality of exposures

Gross carrying amounts of
Defaulted Non-defaulted | Allowances /
exposures exposures impairments Net values
As at , , , ,
31 December 2018 UsD’000 UsD’000 USsD’000 USD’000
1 Loans 1,602,663 1,602,663
2 Debt securities 1,315,300 1,315,300
5 | Off-balance sheet ) ) )
exposures
4 Total 2,917,963 2,917,963

Loans included loans and advances to customersetatdd accrued interest receivables.
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Table CRB: Additional disclosure related to creditquality of exposures

A financial asset is considered past due when ategparty has failed to make a payment when
contractually due.

A financial asset is considered impaired if thex®bjective evidence of impairment resulting from a
event occurring which will have an adverse impatteapected future cash flows of an asset and the
expected impact can be reliably estimated.

For details of methods adopted for determining iimpents, please refer to the note 3(f) and 24 &o th
audited financial statements.

As at 31 December 2018, the Company had no impa&ixedsures and no exposure which is past due
for more than 90 days but is not impaired.

Restructured exposures refer to assets that hage bestructured and renegotiated between the
Company and the counterparties because of a detioio in the financial position of the counterest

or of the inability of the counterparties to meke toriginal repayment schedule and for which the
revised repayment terms, either of interest oepayment period, are non-commercial to the Company.
As at 31 December 2018, the Company had no restedexposures.

The following tables show the breakdown of the Camps exposures by geographical areas, industry
and residual maturity as at 31 December 2018. é'hesounts do not include the effects of recognised
credit risk mitigation.

2018
Exposures by geographical areas US$'000
Hong Kong 839,492
Singapore 485,090
Others® 2,134,236
Total 3,458,818

2018
Exposures by industry US$'000
Industrial, commercial and financial 1,311,407
Individuals 291,114
Others® 1,856,297
Total 3,458,818

2018
Exposures by residual maturity US$'000
Less than 1 year 2,863,822
Between 1 and 5 years 594,996
Total 3,458,818

Note (1): Any segment which constitutes less th@¥ of the Company'’s total RWA for credit risk @ftaking into account of
any recognised credit risk mitigation) is not gepely disclosed and grouped on an aggregated basier the
category “others”.
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Table CRC: Qualitative disclosures related to credirisk mitigation

In order to manage credit exposure arising frombiisiness activities, the Company applies various
credit risk management policies and procedures,nsée 24 to the audited financial statements for
further details.

The Company's primary method of mitigating credikris the use of eligible collateral for the margi
loan portfolio. Eligible collaterals include cagharketable securities and other investment products
Majority of the Company’s collaterals are cash amarketable securities, including equity securities,
bonds and mutual funds, where collateral valuebeiry revaluated daily.

The Company maintains policies and procedures etldd collateral management. It applies a
conservative margin policy to ensure with a higlgrde of confidence that claims can be repaid ih ful
through the liquidation of assets in the clienttfmio securing the exposure.

The Company enters into valid bilateral netting agrents with Morgan Stanley affiliates which
satisfied the conditions set out under section thefBanking (Capital) Rules for recognised nettivg

at 31 December 2018, minimal recognised nettingpplied for both on- and off-balance sheet
exposures.

Template CR3: Overview of recognised credit risk ntigation

Exposures
secured by
Exposures Exposures | Exposures | recognised
unsecured: | Exposures | secured by | secured by credit
carryin to be recognised | recognised | derivative
amoun secured collateral guarantees | contracts
As at , , ) ) )
31 December 2018 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
1 | Loans 571,07: 1,031,59 1,031,59 - -
2 | Debt securitie: 1,31530C - - - -
3 | Total 1,886,371 1,031,59p 1,031,592 - -
4 | Of which defaultec - - - - -

Loans included loans and advances to customersetatdd accrued interest receivables.

Note (1):

All exposures arising from loans are yfullecured by collateral as at 31 December 2018edimed exposures

disclosed in the above table are either becauseetéeant collateral is not considered as recognisslateral, or the
carrying amount of such recognised collateral i§estt to standard supervisory haircut in accordavide the Banking

(Capital) Rules.

Table CRD: Qualitative disclosures on use of ECAlatings under STC approach
The Company uses the STC approach to calculateeitht risk.

Standard & Poor’s Rating Services, Moody’s Invest®ervice and Fitch Ratings are the external credit
assessment institutions (the “ECAIs”") that the Campused to determine the risk weight of the
exposure classes, including sovereign, bank, geufirm, corporate and other exposures which are
not past due exposures. The Company follows tleegss as prescribed in Part 4 of the Banking
(Capital) Rules to map ECAI issuer ratings to expes booked in its banking book.
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Template CR4: Credit risk exposures and effects ofecognised credit risk mitigation — for STC
approach

Exposures pre-CCF
and pre-CRM

Exposures post-CCF
and post-CRM

RWA and RWA
density

As at
31 December 2018

On-
balance
sheet
amount

Off-
balance
sheet
amount

On- Off-
balance balance
sheet sheet
amount amount

RWA

RWA density

Exposure classes

uSD’000

uUSD’000

USD’000 | USD’000

uSsD’'000 %

2a

2b

© 00N O

10

11

12

13

14

15

Sovereign exposures

Public Sector Entity
(“PSE”) exposures

Of which: domestic
PSEs

Of which: foreign
PSEs

Multilateral
development bank
exposures

Bank exposures

Securities firm
exposures

Corporate exposures
CIS exposures
Cash items

Exposures in respect of]
failed delivery on
transactions entered
into on a basis other
than a delivery-versus-
payment basis

Regulatory retail
exposures

Residential mortgage
loans

Other exposures which
are not past due
exposures

Past due exposures

Significant exposures tq
commercial entities

Total

1,323,316

532,23
536

1,311,412

291,320

3,458,818

1,323,316

- 532,234

463 -

481,041

90,09¢

2,427,158

- 106,p69 20%

232 509

481,041 100%

90,099 100

677,941 28

o

o
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Template CR5: Credit risk exposures by asset classand by risk weights — for STC approach

As at 31 December 2018
Total credit risk
Risk WeigHt 0% 10% 20% 35% 50% 75% 100% 150% 250% Others | exposures amount (post
CCF and post CRM)
Exposure class
USD’000 | USD’000 [ USD’000| USD'000| USD'00q  USD00 USIDO USD’000 | USD’000 | USD’000 uSsD’000

1 Sovereign exposures 1,323,316 - - - - - - - - - 1,323,316
2 PSE exposures - - - - - - - - - - -
2a Of which: domestic PSEs - -
2b Of which: foreign PSEs - -
3 Multilateral development bank exposures - - - - - - -
4 Bank exposures - - 531,826 - 408 - - - - - 532,234
5 Securities firm exposures 4 - - 463
6 Corporate exposures 481,041 - - - 481,041
7 CIS exposures - - - - - - - - - - -
8 Cash items - - - - - - - - - - -
9 Exposures in respect of failed delivery on - - - - - - - - - - -

transactions entered into on a basis other than

a delivery-versus-payment basis
10 Regulatory retail exposures - - -
11 Residential mortgage loans - - -
12 Other exposures which are not past due - - - - - - 90,099 - - - 90,099

exposures
13 Past due exposures - - - - - - - - - - -
14 Significant exposures to commercial entities - - - - - - - - - -
15 | Total 1,323,316 - 531,82 87 571,140 - 2,427,153
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Table CCRA: Qualitative disclosures related to couterparty credit risk (including those arising
from clearing through CCPs)

Counterparty credit risk refers to the risk of l@ssociated with the failure by one or more sates a
trading counterparties to perform against its amitral obligations. The Company’s counterparty icred
risk arises from securities purchased under agreemi resell with external counterparties and
derivative transactions with Morgan Stanley afféi in relation to treasury activities. Counterpart
credit exposure is managed by eligible collaterghvdaily margining between the Company and
counterparties and the collateral requirement islinked to credit rating. Given the nature of such
transactions, there is no general wrong-way-risll apecific wrong-way risk. Operating limits in
relation to exposures arising from the derivatramsactions with Morgan Stanley affiliates areaset
percentage of the Company’s capital based on éatarsage of such activities.

Details of such transactions are further detailednote 24 and note 26 to the audited financial

statements.
Template CCR1: Analysis of counterparty default rik exposures (other than those to CCPs) by
approaches
Alpha (a) Default
. used for risk
Replacement PFE Eifective computing | exposure RWA
cost (RC) EPE .
default risk after
exposure CRM
As at 31 December 2018 US$'000 | US$000 | US$000 | US$000 | US$000 | US$H000
1 SA-CCR (for derivative Not applicable
contracts)
la | CEM - 2,786 1| 2,786 1,393
2 IMM (CCR) approach - - - -
3 | Simple Approach (for SFTs - -
4 Comprehensive Approach - -
(for SFTs)
5 | Value-at-risk (“VaR”) (for - -
SFTs)
6 Total 1,393
Template CCR2: CVA capital charge
Exposure at
default (‘EAD”) RWA
post CRM
As at 31 December 2018 US$'000 US$'000
Netting sets for which CVA capital charge is céted by the - -
advanced CVA method
(i) VaR (after application of multiplication factdrapplicable) -
(ii) Stressed VaR (after application of multiglion factor if -
applicable)
3 Netting sets for which CVA capital charge is cédted by the 2786 634
standardised CVA method '
4 | Total 2,786 634
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Template CCR3: Counterparty default risk exposuregother than those to CCPs) by asset classes andiisk weights — for STC approach

As at 31 December 2018

Total
Riskweight @ | 10% | 20% | 35% | 50% | 75% | 100% | 150% | 250% | Others dg;‘";‘)‘f)'tsﬂfek
Exposure class after CRM
uUs$ Uss$ Uss$ uss uss Us$ Uss$ uss uss$ US$ uss$
'000 '000 '000 '000 '000 '000 '000 000 '000 '000 '000
Sovereign exposures - - - - - - - - - -
2 PSE exposures - - - - - - - - - -
2a Of which: domestic PSEs - - - - - - - - - -
2b Of which: foreign PSEs - - - - - - - - - -
3 | Multilateral development bank - - - - - - - - - -
exposures
4 Bank exposures - - - 2,786 - - - - - 2,786
5 | Securities firm exposures - - - - - - - - - -
6 Corporate exposures - - - - - - - - - -
7 CIS exposures - - - - - - - - - -
8 Regulatory retail exposures - - - - - - - - - -
9 Residential mortgage loans - - - - - - - - - -
10 | Other exposures which are not pagt - - - - - - - - - -
due exposures
11 | Significant exposures to commercial - - - - - - - - - -
entities
12 | Total - - - 2,786 - - - - - 2,786
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Template CCR5: Composition of collateral for counteparty default risk exposures (including

those for contracts or transactions cleared througltCCPs)

Derivative contracts SFTs
Fair value of recognised Fair value of posted Fair value
collateral received collateral of Fair value
recognised | of posted
Segregated | Unsegregatefl Segregated | Unsegregated collateral collateral
received
Asat US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$’000 US$'000 US$'000
31 December 2018
Cash - domestic
currency ) ) ) 1,595
Total - 1,595 -

Domestic currency refers to the reporting curresicthe Company, i.e. USD.

Table IRRBB: Interest rate exposures in banking bok

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk arifiom banking book activities covering clients’

deposits and loans, the Company's funding and diguiinvestments. The financial assets and

liabilities of the Company, which inherently haveerest rate risk, are primarily driven by prevaili

market rates.

The sensitivity analysis for the interest rate rigkthe banking book is based on the difference in

interest rate sensitivity of interest bearing assetd interest bearing liabilities. The Companysiese

instantaneous parallel interest rate shock of 28€lsbpoints (upward or downward) to evaluate the
potential impact on its earnings, which was a gaifoss of approximately US$5,620,000 as at 31
December 2018. The Company also monitors the istteage risk of the banking book daily based on
price value per one basis point increase or deereasnterest rates, which was a gain or loss of

approximately US$50,000 as at 31 December 2018.
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Table REMA: Remuneration policy

Governance structure

The Board Remuneration and Culture, Values and Gein@ommittee appointed by the Board of
Directors of the Company assists the Board of Dimacin discharging its responsibility for the dpsi

and operation of the Company’s remuneration systeng, makes recommendation in respect of
remuneration policy and practices to the Board oE®ors. The Board Remuneration and Culture,
Values and Conduct Committee comprises of threeedBagembers, two of whom are independent
non-executive directors of the Company. No extecaalsultants have been engaged by the Company
since the set up of the Board Remuneration andufeylValues and Conduct Committee in 2018.

The Board of Directors endorses and issues the meration policy for the Company and its
branch. The remuneration policy takes into comsitilen the global practices of the Morgan Stanley
Group on remuneration. In addition, local marked asompetitor practices are also taken into
consideration in determining the Company’s remuti@ngpolicy.

Senior management is defined as those persons rehresponsible for oversight of the Company's
strategy or activities and/or those of the Compsumyaterial business lines. Key personnel are eéfin
as individual employees whose duties or activiiirethe course of their employment involve the
assumption of material risk or taking on of mateeigposures on behalf of the Company. For the year
ended 31 December 2018, the Company has 26 seaimmgament and no key personnel. Quantitative
information on the remuneration for senior managenznd key personnel is set out in Templates
REM1, REM2 and REM3 below.

Three meetings were held by the Board Remuneratimh Culture, Values and Conduct Committee
during the year ended 31 December 2018. For the gieded 31 December 2018, the remuneration
paid to the Board Remuneration and Culture, Vaares Conduct Committee members in the Morgan
Stanley Group was borne by other Morgan Stanleyu@mundertakings; the remuneration paid to the
Board Remuneration and Culture, Values and Con@aotmittee members not in the Morgan Stanley
Group by the Company was US$134,000.

Remuneration structure

The Company’s remuneration policies and procedaresonsistent with those of the Morgan Stanley
Group. The Morgan Stanley Group is committed tg@oesible and effective compensation program,
which is continually evaluated with a view towarazlancing the following objectives, all of which
support shareholders’ interests:

Deliver Pay for Sustainable Performance

The Morgan Stanley Group applies “pay-for-perforoelnphilosophy that pervades its culture and
motivates the employees. The Morgan Stanley Groapards employees by directly linking
compensation to performance based on their annb@ctive setting and annual performance
evaluation, taking account of the overall perforoenf the Company as a whole over the longer term;
performance of the relevant business units; camiob of individual employees to the above
performance; and outlook of the overall Morgan &taiGroup.

Compensation programs for the majority of employeesiprised two key elements, including base
salary and discretionary compensation which mapd&ble in cash or partially in cash and partially
in deferred compensation awards depending on tlet ¢ total compensation, seniority and the rdle o
the employees.
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Table REMA: Remuneration policy (continued)

Remuneration structure (continued)

Deliver Pay for Sustainable Performance (continued)

In addition, for employees in the most senior rofesignificant portion of compensation is delivceie

the form of long-term incentive awards, which clgsée such employees’ compensation to the
Morgan Stanley Group’s long-term performance.

Investment Representatives ("IRs") are also ekgibl receive commissions, which are formulaically
calculated based on predetermined production goalsalso payable in cash or partially in cash and
partially in deferred compensation awards.

Align Employees’ Compensation with Shareholdergéiasts

The Morgan Stanley Group links a significant partiof employees’ incentive compensation to
performance and delivers annual deferred compamsativards which helps motivate employees to
achieve the Morgan Stanley Group’s financial amatsgic goals.

Compensation decisions for employees in risk comftmections (including risk management, financial
control, compliance, legal and internal audit fums) are determined by senior management of these
divisions, wholly independent of the performanceta business units, and not by the management of
the business units.

Attract and Retain Top Talent

The Morgan Stanley Group competes for talent glgbatith other banks and financial
institutions. The Morgan Stanley Group continuatignitors competitive pay levels and structures its
incentive awards to attract and retain the moslifigchemployees.

Mitigate Excessive Risk-Taking

The Compensation, Management Development and StioneSommittee (the “CMDS Committee”)
of the Morgan Stanley Group is advised by the Maorgtanley Group’s CRO and the CMDS
Committee’s independent compensation consultarttelp ensure that the structure and design of
compensation arrangements disincentivise unnegessalexcessive risk-taking that threatens the
Morgan Stanley Group’s interests or give rise gksithat could have a material adverse effect en th
Morgan Stanley Group.

Remuneration process

In the first quarter of each year, senior managermokthe Morgan Stanley Group proposes and works
with the members of the Morgan Stanley Group’s @fieg Committee (including the CRO of the
Morgan Stanley Group) and the Board of Directorshef Morgan Stanley Group to establish financial
and non-financial performance priorities that aligneed with the Morgan Stanley Group’s business
strategy and to incorporate risk-adjusted measamdbjectives.

The CRO of the Morgan Stanley Group evaluates tloeghh Stanley Group’s current compensation
programs on annual basis and has determined tkat gograms do not encourage excessive risk-
taking behavior, due in part to (i) the balancéx@#d compensation and variable compensationth{(@)
balance between short-term and long-term incentifi@smandatory deferrals into both equity-based
and cash-based incentives programs; (iv) the gewem procedures followed in making compensation
decisions; and (v) the risk-mitigating featurestttd deferred incentive compensation awards, such as
cancellation and clawback provisions. Details &f tleferred compensation plans are set out in ribte 3
to the financial statements.

107



MORGAN STANLEY ASIA INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Year ended 31 December 2018

H. PILLAR 3 DISCLOSURE (CONTINUED)
Table REMA: Remuneration policy (continued)
Remuneration process (continued)

The overall discretionary bonus pool is establistiedonsultation with the CMDS Committee. Risk-
Adjusted Return on Equity is the primary quantitatimetric reviewed with the CMDS Committee to
determine the size of the bonus pool. Employeétlity for bonus compensation is discretionary and
bonus decisions are subject to a multi-dimensipnadess, which considers financial and non-findncia
individual, business unit and Morgan Stanley Greygrformance measures.

Non-financial performance criteria that may be tak&o account in deciding whether to award, and
the amount of any bonus compensation, includegtminot limited to):

e Individual conduct, including but not limited tajl@erence to the Morgan Stanley Group’s Code of
Conduct and policies and the Morgan Stanley Groopfsiral values;

e Contribution to the performance and profitabilifybmth the business unit and the Morgan Stanley
Group and the strategic objectives of the Morgaan®ty Group, business unit and the team and
the associated value attributed to the role;

« Commercial impact, including business/functionabliedge and judgment, client relationships,
innovation and execution;

e Leadership skills, including teamwork, communicaténd management;
e Professional skills, including recruiting, diveys#énd inclusion; and
» Adherence to compliance and risk policies, inclgdéthics, control and risk management.

Senior management of the Morgan Stanley Group Aed0MDS Committee oversee the Morgan
Stanley Group’s controls regarding the year-endpsmation process to help eliminate incentives for
excessive risk-taking, including:

e Sizing the incentive compensation pool to moreyfulbnsider risk-adjusted returns, compliance
with risk limits and the market and competitive Bamment;

* Allocating the incentive compensation pool amongiesses after consideration of the business’
returns on certain financial and return on capitatrics;

* Delivering a substantial portion of compensation multi-year deferrals subject to
malus/cancellation;

» Directing compensation managers to consider malnsédlation events and an employee’s risk
management activities and outcomes in making cosgigm decisions; and

e Undertaking a rigorous review process by risk aantfunctions to identify potential
malus/cancellation situations.

In addition, on an annual basis, business head¥Ogradating Committee members representing the
Morgan Stanley Group’s revenue-generating divisiais prepare a Pay and Performance Analysis
report that is presented to the CMDS Committees Téport sets the stage for the CMDS Committee to
understand the outcomes of pay from the prior yelative to the market, and the linkage of prioarye
pay and performance. In turn, this enables the CMIxnmittee to consider where the starting
baseline of pay either trails or leads the market &whether such a position is warranted or shoeld b
rectified in light of current year known performancompensation outcomes are symmetric with risk
outcomes at the Morgan Stanley Group level.
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Template REM1: Remuneration awarded during financid year

Below table shows the quantitative information emuneration for the year ended 31 December 2018.

2018
Senior Key
management| personnel

Remuneration amount and quantitative information USD’000 uUSD’000
1 Number of employees 26 -
2 Total fixed remuneration 8,423 -
3 Of which: cash-based 8,423 -
4 , Of which: deferred
5 Fixed L :

remuneration Qf which: shares or other share-linked - -

instruments

6 Of which: deferred
7 Of which: other forms
8 Of which: deferred
9 Number of employees 26 -
10 Total variable remuneration 12,323 -
11 Of which: cash-based 8,642 -
12 ) Of which: deferred 3,70P -

Variable i :
13| remuneration Of which: shares or other share-linked 3,681 -

instruments

14 Of which: deferred 3,68[L -
15 Of which: other forms
16 Of which: deferred
17 | Total remuneration 20,746 -

Template REM2: Special payments

Below table shows the quantitative information pedal payment for the year ended 31 December
2018.

2018
Guaranteed bonuses Sign-on awards Severance payment
Special Number of Total Number of Total Number of Total
payments employees amount employees amount employees amount
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
1 Senior - - - - - -
management
Key - - - - - -
personnel

109



MORGAN STANLEY ASIA INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Year ended 31 December 2018

H. PILLAR 3 DISCLOSURE (CONTINUED)

Template REM3: Deferred remuneration

Below table shows the quantitative information efedred and retained remuneration.

2018
Of which: Total
amount of
outstanding
deferred and
retained Total amount of
remuneration amendment Total amount of Total amount of
Total amount of exposed to ex during the year amendment during deferred
outstanding post explicit due to ex post the year due to ex remuneration
deferred and/or implicit explicit post implicit paid out in the
Deferred and ; h : : ’ -
retained remuneration adjustment adjustments adjustments financial year
remuneration US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 USs$'000
1 Senior
management

2 Cash 7,001 7,00 (620) (61) 4,810
3 Shares 10,791 10,79 (45B) (1,91 6,1
4 Cash-linked - - - - -

instruments
5 Other - - - - -
6 Key personnel
7 Cash - - - - -
8 Shares - - - -
9 Cash-linked - - - - -

instruments
10 Other - - - - -
11 | Total 17,792 17,792 (1,073) (1,977) 11,365
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